POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

PUBLIC

27. Selling and Administrative Expenses

(a) Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Wages and salaries

Expenses related to defined benefit plan

Other employee benefits
Travel

Depreciation
Communication

Electric power

Taxes and public dues
Rental

Repairs

Insurance premium
Entertainment
Advertising

Research & development
Service fees

Supplies

Vehicles maintenance
Industry association Fee
Training

Conference

Warranty expense

Bad debt allowance
Others

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
W 606,319 446,023
60,271 36,708
164,508 116,203
56,635 43,592
172,807 110,093
13,061 9,195
7,529 5,269
50,617 34,869
65,559 54,739
14919 9,660
18,239 10,252
17,905 17,050
70,939 96,305 N
212472 141,314 -
286,635 192,979
14,357 17,012
21,491 15,851
10,200 10,403
24,375 24,762
21,739 17,659
14,166 19,733
103,848 51,186
19,173 19423
W 2,048,264 1,500,370
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(b) Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Freight W 1,406,269 948,891
Operating expenses for distribution center 8,115 8,694
Sales commissions 85,410 69,823
Sales advertising 1,204 1,483
Sales promotion 16,179 12,096
Sample 7321 3478
Sales insurance preminm 19,915 14,579
Contract cost 62,986 58,340
Others 4,729 2,956

W 1,612,128 1,120,340

28. Other Operating Income and Expenses

(a) Other operating income

Details of other operating income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31, 2010
Gain on disposal of W 13,812 26,366
property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of 2,247 2,942
investment of equity-accounted mvestees
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 86,451 3,796
Miscellaneous income 219973 186,267
Others 14,595 12,016
W 337078 231,387
87
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(b) Other operating expenses

Details of other operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011  December 31, 2010
Loss on disposal of w 60,550 83,494
property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of investment property 8,826 11,896
Cost of idle assets 16,881 795
Other bad debt expenses 28,081 12,877
Contributions 66,558 74,343
Miscellaneous loss 90,744 101,105
Others 111,819 57,441
W 383.459 341,951
29, Expenses by Nature

Expenses that are recorded by nature as cost of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses and
other operating expenses in the statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Changes in inventories W 40,166,313 19,496,278
Employee benefits expenses 2,639,966 2,363,727
Depreciation (*1} 2,133,011 2,960,550
Amortisation 133,288 75,344
Other sellng and administrative 2,880,766 2,064,594
expenses (*2)
Other cost of sales (*2) 15,530,899 15,382,677
Losses on disposition 60,550 83,494
Donation 66,559 74,344
Other operating expenses 256,350 184,114
W 63,867,702 42 685,122

(*1) Includes depreciation expense of investment properties.
(*2) Includes expenses for research and development, service fees, electric power and others.

88




POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

30. Finance Income and Costs

Details of finance income and costs for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

{in mifllons of Won}

Finance income
Interest income
Dividend income
Gain on foreign currency transaction
Gain on foreign currency translation
(Gain on derivatives transactions
Gain on valuation of derivatives
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
Others

Finance costs
Interest expenses
Loss on foreign currency transaction
Loss on foreign currency translation
Loss on derivatives transactions
Loss on valuation of derivatives
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
Others

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

W 216,234 292928

143,880 102,161

1,454,103 844,321

259,014 204,568

549,439 180,933

111,637 86,823

454,543 2,590

1,569 24,480

3190419 1,738,804

788,348 586,883

1,620,394 808,718

529910 423 460

512,882 173,196

138,742 17,784

152,804 YA

73,615 18,645

W 3,866,695 2,087.858
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31. Income Taxes

{(a) The Company was subject to income taxes on taxable income at the following normal tax rates.

Taxable income 2010 2011 Thereafter
Up to W 200 million 11.00%% 11.00% 11.00%
Over W 200 million up to ¥ 20 billion 24.20% 24.20% 22.00%
Over W 20 billion 24.20% 24.20% 24.20%

In December 2011, the Korean government changed the corporate income tax rate (including
resident tax) for taxable income exceeding W 20 billion from 22.0% to 24.2% prospectively
from 2012.

{b) Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in niillions of Won) December 31, 2011  December 31, 2010
Current income texes W 1,065,240 1,111,427
Deferred income tax due to temporary differences (318,722) 103,054
Less: Items recorded directly to equity 317,591 {133,009)
Income tax expense W 1,068,109 1,081,472

(¢) The following table reconciles the expected amount of income tax expense based on statutory rates
(24.2%) to the actual amount of taxes recorded by the Company for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010:

(in millions of Won) December 31,2011 December31, 2010
Net income before income tax expense W 4782395 5,267,123
Income tax expense computed at statutory rate L,157340 1,274,644
Adjustments: {89,231) (193,172)
Tax effects due to permanent differences (13,798) (28,973)
Tax credit (193,633) (268,873)
Unrecognised defered tax asaets 68,905 49,196
Tax rate change effect 17,661 -
Difference in tax rate 56,010 24,693
Others (24.376) 30,785
Income tax expense W 1,068,109 1,081,472
Effective ratc (%) 22.33 20.53

(d) The income taxes {charged) credited directly in equity for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(Loss) gam on valuation of available-for-sale mvestments W (306,327) 122,651
Gains on sale of treasury stock 22,078 -
Others (31,628) (27,199)
W (316377) 95,452
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( ™ (e) The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
o are as follows:

fin widfons of Kont December 31, 2841 _ Deeember 31, 3010
Des. 31, 2019 Ing (Dee) Dec. 1. 2011 Dee. 31, 2008 Ine {Dee) Dee, 31, 2010
Deferred income it dap 1o Keaperry (ifferences
Reserve for speeil repeins W [t el ] [{F L] (20859 (39,900 11724 anns
Alorv s For doublfol oceeants MY wuan 10621 IR 41066 W49
Reserve for iechnobogy developments {209892) (960 622y (mxm (90364} (2989
Depraciation axpense (BL129 2841 [LLE ] (TRARS) 1735 5L139)
Share of prof or kaca of equity-ncotunied imvesters {70018 (54,010 {324,106, (32151 {h17848) (008
Reserve for enveniony vaasn 1484 [l ] (1314} W 97 1434
Revakution of aster (MY BUTAS) (e 436051} na (W29
Propaid expeases LT e nar 17669 1064 IRTIS
¥oi Socs on property, plant and HRSA 634 PLE H 11,080 117 M58
Lis aav Eieeign currency tranahilion wWess 513 Lok 45306 44730 0,656
Acerued seversace benellits HNo 14343 808 3 M {L2464) 40710
Droup SEvErancs IuumnCe deposies (MDD (RAT) 080 {¥0159) (6063 (3622
Proviskn for comtraciion ksses L LIss 1R52 M [F3) 1897
Provivion foe conpimetion witianty 13086 2846 15,002 13,040 1] 13486
Apopriied retdined eorsings for sechnologicol development {UR) 1} 1)48) el ] ") (246}
Accrued inoome 11,081y (E88) (149 leni “wh 1081
Oulers JIIAT6, SAEL X16307, RS 23 NN
ST Y {330, (PRI (IR7E9) ZLOY) (23902
Deferred bBeome mace recopnieed direcily 10 equity
Gain {kos) on valistion of availobic-for-sale securitica (IOSA08y MaxT Al (1R2;73%) 122650) £305,405)
Othery _alit HY" XN pash 1% 4141
O0ES 2R T oL s 12036
Delerod Bax froem tax ereidit
Tax eredh comyforvard and gtbery Hno29s (2418 28417 122,088 1,790 0,195
Defemed ba cffect duo o unrcalised gains (loszes) and others 11200000 120435 RIS 2T (60738 (129.0000
W e M. izdss 209 T [8ASD)

(f) Deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010
are as follows:

( 1) December 31, 2011
4
(in millions of Won) December 31,2011
Asscts Liabilitics Net
Deferred income 1ax due to temporary differences
Reserve for special repairs Y - (29,659 (29,659
Alowance for doubiful accounts 104,672 (51) 104,621
Reserve for technokgy developments - (366,232) (366,232)
Depreciation experse 12,319 {70,607 (58,288)
Share of profit or loss of equity-accounted invesiees - (224,136) (224,136)
Reserve for inventory valuation 4,319 (5,833) (1514)
Revakiation of agsels - (570,403) {570,403)
Prepeid expenses 23,045 {1,608) 21437
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 25492 - 25492
Loss on foreign currency trensintion 176,621 (80,334) 95,787
Accrued severance benefits 75912 (20,859) 55,053
Group severance insurance deposits - (43,091} (43,091}
Provision for construction losses 2,852 - 2,852
Provision for construction wartanty 15,902 - 15,90
Approprinied retained eamings for technological development - (163) (165)
Acerued income - (1,949 (1,549
Others 382,735 (6628) 376,107
823860 (1422.055) (598,186)
Peferred ncoine taxes recognized directly 10 equity
Gain (loss} on vakation of available-for-sale investments 199,317 (197,896) td21
Others 49,898 (14,129) 35,769
249215 (212,025) 37,190
Deferred tax from tax credit
- Tax credit carryforward ond athers 292255 {35,378) 256,877
( J Deferred tax effect dugs to unrealized gains (logses) and others 494,450 (502,825} (8,375)
“ W ,359.789 (2,172.283) {312494)
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2) December 31, 2010

(in millions of Won} December 31, 2010
Asscis Liabilities Net
Deferred income tax due to temporary dilferences
Reserve for special repairs w - (27,776) (271,716)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 30,349 - 80,349
Reserve for technology davelopments - (269,892) (269,352)
Depreciation expense 7,555 (68,684) (61,129)
Share of profit or Joss of equity-accounted investees - (170,016} {170,016}
Reserve for inventory vaation 1,484 - 1,484
Revaluation of assets - (362,949) (362,949)
Prepaid expenses 18,852 (19 18,7133
hupairment loss on property, pkmt and equipmient 24,858 - 24858
Loss on foreign currency (ranslation 193,582 (102,926) 90,656
Accrued severance benefits 61,414 (20,704) 40,710
Group severance insurance deposits - (36,232) {36,232)
Provision for construction losses 1,697 - 1,697
Provision for construction warranty 13,056 . 13,056
Appropriatsd retained earnings for technological development - (246) (246)
Accrued income - (1,061) (1,061)
Others 345,109 (27,233) 317876
747956 (1,087,838) (339,382)
Delerred income taxes recognized directly to equity
Gain (loss} on valuation of avaitable-for-sale securities 266 {305,672 (305,406)
Others 30,112 (25,970 4,141
30,278 {331,643) (301,265)
Dreferred tax from tax credit
Tax credit carryforward and olhers 315,140 (34,845) 280.29&
Deferred tax effect due 1o unrealized gaing (losses) and others 341471 {4704T1). (129,000)
W 1434945 (1,924 97 (489.852)
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(’.‘.M b
' 3) January 1, 2010
fin millions of Won) December 31, 2010
Assets Linbilities Net
Deferred income tax due to lemporary differences
Reserve for special repairs W . (39,500) (39,500%
Allowance for doubtful accounts 38283 - 38283
Reserve for technology developments - (179,828) (179,828}
Depreciation exponse 3,103 (81,588) (78485)
Share of profit or loss of equity-accounted investees - (82,151) (52151
Reserve for inventory valuation 987 - o087
Revaluation of assels - {436,051) (436,051)
Prepaid expenses 17,756 1)) 17,569
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 11,080 - 11,080
Loss on forsign currency translation 132,071 (86,265) 45306
Accrued severance benefits 53,374 - 53374
Group severance insurance deposiis - (30,199) {30,199)
Provision for construction bsses 263 - 263
Provision for construction warranly 13,040 - 13,040
Apptopriated vetained camings for technological development - (242) {242)
Acerued incoms - (570) {570}
Others 263,171 55,064 318,235
$33,128 (851917 {318,789)
Deferred income taxes recognized directly to aquity
Gain (loss) on valuation of available-for-sale investments 9821 (192,576) {182,75%)
Others 4,874 (27,932} (23,058)
(‘ 14695 (220,508) {205.813)
ot Deferred tax from 1ax credit
Tax credit carryforward axd others 362,608 (40,523) 322085
Deferred tax effect due to unrealized gains (fosses) and others 338,150 {103,424) 234,726
W 1,248,581 (1:216372) 32,209

(f) As of December 31, 2011, the Company did not recognize income tax effects associated with taxable
temporary differences of W 3,121,101 million (deferred tax liability W 777,328 million) mainly relating to
incresse in retained earnings of subsidiaries since it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. As of December 31, 2011, the Company did not recognize income tax effect
associated with deductible temporary differences of W 1,352,764 million (deferred tax assets W 327,369
million) mainly relating to loss of subsidiaries and effiliates due to remote possibility of realization.
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32. Earnings per Share

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as

follows:

(in millions of Won, except per share information)

Profit atiribuste to controlling interest W
Weighted-avernge mumber of common sheres outstanding (*1)
Basic and diluted earnings per share

2011 2010
3,648,136 4,105,623
77251318 77032878
47224 53,297

(*1) The weighted-average number of common shares used to calculate basic and diluted earnings

per share are as follows:

Total number of conmon shares issued
Weighted-average number of treasury shares
Weighted-averages number of common shares outstanding

201} 2010
87,186835 87,186,835
{9,935017) (10,153957)
77251 818 77032578

33. Operating Profit
Operating profit adjusted by previous GAAP for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
follows: {
(in millions of Won)} 2011 2010
Operating profits by K-1IFRS W 5,408,101 5433520
Deducted
Gains on disposal of property, plant, and equipment (13,812) {26,366)
Gain on disposal of
investment of equity-accounted investees (2247) (2.942)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts (86,451) (3,796)
Miscellaneous income (219,973) (136,267)
Others (14,595) (12,016)
(337,078) {231,387)
Added
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 60,550 83,494
Loss on disposal of investment property 8,826 11,896
Idie tangible assets expenses 16,881 795
Other bad debt expenses 28,081 12877
Donations 66,558 74,343
Miscellaneous expenses 90,744 101,105
Others 111,819 57442
383,459 341952
Operating profits by previous GAAP W 5454482 5,544,085
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34, Related Party Transactions

are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Subsidlaries(*3)

POSCO E&C Co., Ltd,

POSCO Processing & Service Co., Ltd.
POSCO Coated & Color Steel Co., Lid.
POSCO ICT Co., Ltd.

POSCO Chemtech Company Ltd.
POSCC TMC Co., Ltd.

POSCO AST Co., Ltd.

Daewoo International Corp.

POSCO NST Co., Ltd.

POSCO America Corporation

POSCO Canada Ltd.

POSCO Asia Co., Ltd.

POSCOQ-Japan Co., L,

POSCO-IPPC Pwt. L.
POSCO-Mexico Co., Ltd.

Daswoo Internationel Singapore Pte. Ltd,

Others

Assoclates(*3)

SNNC Co,, Ltd.
USS-POSCO Industries
Poschrome(Proprietary) Ltd.
Others

Sates and others (*1)

(a) Significant transactions with related companies for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Purchase and others (*2)

2011 2010 2011 2010
W 26,536 7441 W 1,687,665 2,292,524
1,181,088 1,082,903 1,406,245 478,030
593,656 685,698 1,850 3,178
1,537 1,212 507,883 485,525
423,643 142,677 755,515 573973
168,314 151,323 884 91
319,258 267323 58475 57,180
3,896,857 867916 5,599 3,799
186,809 9,256 4734 -
353,904 233,504 1 -
- - 289,047 170,842
2,029,781 1,377,802 178,395 148,706
1,628,069 1,161,919 34,860 272,282
148,343 164,628 - -
347915 273241 176 -
- - 149,029 12,447
927,595 1,432,206 1,198,091 750,526
W 12233305 7859229 W 6278489 5,249,103
4,787 1,763 447,130 519,871
342,594 308998 29 264
- - 72,502 80,282
213232 31,528 59,444 303,446
W 560613 342289 W 579,105 903,863
W 12,793918 8201518 W 6857594 6,152,966

(*1) Sales and others include sales and other operating income.

products and these are priced on an arm’s length basis.

Sales are mainly seles of steel

(*2) Purchase and others include purchase and overhead cost. Purchases and others are mainly
related to purchased of construction services and purchase of raw materials to manufacture
steel products. These are priced on an arm's length basis.

(*3) As of December 31, 2100, the Company provided guarantees to related parties (note 35).
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(b) Significant transactions with related companies the related account balances as of December 31,
2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(M millions of Won) Recelvables (*1) Payables (*1)
January, 1 January, 1
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Subsidiaries
POSCO E&C Co., Lid. W 647 293 480 W 241918 190,081 437,819
ngcf ldp‘“"“”“‘ & Service 88838 129,133 114,783 1512 6342 2,696
POSCO Plantec Co., Ltd. 65 - 9 42534 48,058 22839
POSCO ICT Co,, Lid. 30 - 1 62,583 63,627 54,529
POSCO Coated & Color Steel 116252 104,755 109,616 115 7 199
Co, Lud.
l::)sco Chemtech Compeany 37,808 13,743 6380 22,048 62,669 66,008
POSCO TMC Co., Lid. 21,601 11,823 11,678 134 15 24
POSCO AST Co., Ltd. 33,266 15,065 17,492 7,080 8,255 7,572
Daewoo Intemational Coxp. 284,125 139,756 - 1,589 - -
POSCO NST Co., Ltd, 64,012 - . 676 - -
POSCO America Carporation 32346 12211 6,163 - - -
FOSCO Asin Co., Lud. 227476 122,626 40,548 1,407 3,767 1,170
POSCO-TBPC Co., Lud. 27,381 18,376 - - - -
Qingdao Pohang Staintess Steel ) . i
Co., Ltd. 6,713 13,805 24404
POSCO-Yietnam Co., Lid. 422 683 95,781 - - -
POSCO-Japan Co., Lid. 52,362 28,515 25972 1,546 4958 6,701 R
POQSCO-IPPC Pvi. Lid, 3484 10412 12,356 - - - { .
POSCO-Mexico Co., Ltd. 171908 80,443 16,247 - - M
Others 81255 15.167 26073 83,201 32209 17,840
W 1,249991 748,340 126,859 W 526,573 420918 617,397
Associates
Posinate Co., Ltd. W - 1,3% 48 W 7,198 6,391 512
SNNC Co., Lid. 223 182 1,974 23,187 57,512 26,963
USS-POSCO Industries - 58347 39,100 - - .
Others 21,160 7231 176 809 29714 78
W 21,383 67,156 412098 W 31,19 93,617 32263
W 127 lé?“l 815,505 568,157 W 557;’67 314,535 649&

(*1) Receivables include trade accounts and notes receivable and other receivables. Payables
include trade accounts payables and other payables.

(¢) For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, details of compensation to key management
officers are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010
Short-term benefits W 03,231 72,753
Other long-term benefits 23,407 16,757
Retirement benefits 26,971 21,110 (
w 143,609 110,620
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Key management officers include directors (including non-standing directors), executive officials
and fellow officials who have significant influence and responsibilities in the Company’s business
and operations. In addition to compensation described above, the Company provided stock
appreciation rights to its executive officers and recorded reversal of stock compensation expenses
amounted to ¥ 4,223 million and ¥ 13,227 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31,

2011 and 2010 (note 24).
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35. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Details of guarantees

Contingent liabilities on outstanding guarantees provided by the Company as of December 31,

2011, are as follows:

Guarantors Gunrantee benaliciary Flusnelsl Institurion Foreign Currency Won Ecquiwlent
[The Company)
POSCO Guangdang Pohang Coated SMBC and otlers USD 122,600,000 141,395
Steel Co., Lidh.
POSCO Investmem Qo,, Lid, BOC and other CNY 630,000,000 114,981
HSBC MYR 240,000,000 gt
HSBC nnd others usp 255,000,000 .09
POSCO Mohamshima Secel Espon-Impott Bank of
Put. Lid. Koren and others UsSD 143,000,000 164,922
POSCO VST Co, Ltd, ANZ(Tapei) and others UsD 55,000,000 4,965
PORCO-Mexdco Co., Lid. HSBC and others uUsD 50,000,000 49,198
POSCO-VIETNAM Co., Ltd. Export-lnport Bank of
Korea ond gthers ush 230,000,000 265,259
Mimho and others JBY 4.806,760,000 71,384
Zhangflagang Pohang Stainless Mimuho and othets tUsD 160,000,000 184,528
SteelCo., Ltd
Zeus {Coyman) Lid, Credbtor JPY 12,825,000,000 190472
Zens {Cayman) T Led. Creditor % 24,526,000,000 364250
Daewoa lﬂ,{ ematicnal Doewno (China) Ca., Ltd. Hana Bank usD 15,000,000 17,300
Compamtian
Daewoo Cement {Shandong) Co., Lad,  Othesoversen financial nstikwtion  EDR 24,563,206 34,703
Korea Exchange Bank CNY 43,000,000 7848
Expont-ingort Bank of usp 29,832,400 34,408
Korea and athen
Dacwoo Intemational Shinlan Bank uso 500,000 L)
Aircrica Corp.
Dacwoo Intemational
Auvstonlin Holdings My, Ltd, Korea Excliange Bank usp 7,198,000 8,301
Daewua Intemational Japan
Comp, Shintan Bank Py 1,000,000,000 14,852
ANZ_KOREA JPY 1,000,000,00¢ 14,852
MIZUHO IFY 1,500,000,000 22mn
SMBC IPY 1,500,000,000 pri o)
Daewao Intemational MIZUHO UsD 10,000,000 11,533
Shanghai Pey, Ltd,
Dy Paper Manofh 1g Co.,Ltd.  HSBC Ush 12,500,000 14415
Dacwoo Teatllc Bukiiarn Expon-lmport Bank of
LLC Korea and othiors UsD 29,100,000 33,361
Dacwoo Intemational SMBC usp 13,000,000 13,833
MEXICO 8.A. de C.V.
PT. Bio Inti Agrindo Erpont-lnport Bank of Korea usp 7,000,000 807
POSCO E&C Vistnam Co., Lid. Korca Exchange Bank usp 5,000,000 3,167
Expon.-limport Bank of
POSCO E&C Co., L1d. Korea and others usp 18,000,000 20,750
POSCO Investment Co., Lid. us 9,500,000 10.956
HONG KONG POSCO E&C
{CHINA) lnvestmen! Co., Lid. ‘Woor Bank UsD 30,000,000 4,59
Intemational Business Center Export-lmport Bank of
Corparation Korea and others usD 20,000,000 23,066
POSCO P&S Ca., Lud, BOSCO Canada Piy., Lid. Hona Bonk vsp 12,424,500 14398
POSCOICT Ca., L1d, VECTUS Ltd. POSCO investment Co,, L1d, UsD 2,000,000 2307
POSCO ICT indonesia POSCO hyvestment Co., Lid, UsDh 1,300,000 1,13
POSCO Encrgy Co. Ltd PSC Energy Global Co., Ltd Other forsign danks usD 120,819,356 149,790
TECHREN Solac, LLC Woorl Bank usD 9,571,600 11,039
ros Cakiam 0., L1d Pos CakeiamCO., L1d Scoul Guarsniee Insurnce Co, Lid,  KRW 48,082,500 L2
POSCO-JKPC Co., Lid, Higo bankand othem JPY 1.867.200.000 21131
POSCO-JNPC Co,, Ltd. Mimho Bankand others IPY 2,110,000,000 31,337
POSCOJAPAN Co., L1d. POSCO-JORC Cor,, Lid, Mizho Bankand others JPY 1,847,500,000 27428
POSCOIYPC Oy, Lad. Mizhe Bankand others JPY 1,333,780,580 19,809
Daewoo Tealle Fergana LLC Dacwoo Textlle Buklara LLC NBU uzs 6,519,920,000 4213
POSCOE&C (CHINA) Co,, Lid,  HONG KONG POSCO E&C KB Bank(Scoul) KRW §02.000,000,000 102,000
{China) Investment Co., Ltd. Woorl Bank{Beljing branch) uso 33,000,000 ELAL
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Guaraniors Guarantoe boneflciney Fiannclal institution Foreign Curreacy Won Exqulwient
[Associates]
POSCO BX STEEL POSCO CoM Relkd BOC and others CNY 316,860,000 51830
Sheet Co., Lid, usp $,220,000 9480
United Spimsl Pipe, LLC Shinhan Bank UsD 24,500,000 28.256
Dacwoo [ntemations! DMSA, AMSA Other Bank usn 123,806,667 142 855
Comontien Ciher overses financiai usDh 16,133,333 18,607
institution
GLOBAL KOMSCO Dacwoo Expon-lupon Bank of UsD 5.950,000 6,862
LLC ¥orea and others
POSCO E&C Co., Lid. PSIBCo,, Lid. Hana Bank KRW 356,600,000.000 356,600
Tacgisan Wind Power
Qorperation Komrea Developmem Bank KRW '7.500,000,000 1500
CHUNGIU ENTERPRISE CITY NH Bank KRWY 12 458,760,000 AN
DEVELOPMENT Co.,Lid.
Pobang Technovalioy PyMCo.Ltd Shinhan Bank KRW 7,140.000.000 7140
POSCO P&S Co., Lid. Schang Stce) Fukuoln Bank Iy 245,000,000 3639
POSCO ICT Co,, Ltd. Uttrans LRT Co., Lad. Construction Quaraniee Cooperstive KRW 64,637,717,095 64,638
CHUNGIU ENTERPRISECITY NH Bank KRWV 2,530,000,000 2,530
DEVELOPMENT Cu., Lid.
POSCO Chinn Co., Lid, POSCO SeAH Steel Wins POSCO Investment Co., Ltd. usp 7,500,000 8,650
(MNantong) Co., Lid,
Daewoo({Ching) Co., Lid. Shanghsi Lansheng China Construction Bank CNY 100,000,000 18281
Daewoo Copomtion
[Others)
Daewoo Incemational Anbatovy Project BExport-lmport Bank of UsD 46,653,812 53805
Corporation fnvestments Limited Korea and others
Sherritt Intcmational Bxport-limport Bank of UsD 6,000,268 7024
Compomiion Koren and others
POSCO B&C Co., Lid, Coopemtive NH Bank ond others KRW 3,000,000,000 3,000
Other cooperatives ABCP and athers. KRY 035,687,702,025 935,688
- 18t ALDJ PFY, 11d Hana Bank and others KRW 277,212,000,000 212
C THEGALE INVESTMENTS
o ¥ COMPANY, L.L.C. and oihers Waoori Bank usD 50,000,000 37,665
POSCOP&S Co., Ltd. Asin Specialily Sieel Co., L1d. Yamagucli Bank IPY 2,700,000,000 40,099
GiP1 Bank Muscal . Bank Sohar usp 12,000,000 13,840
POSCO Plamt Engincering CGycongpo wind power genesation and o1 KB Bank KRwW 235,638,897.79 235634
Co., [4d. GS CALTEX HOU and cthers Korea Exchange Baok ond others usp 14,025,043 16,173
POSCOICT Co,, Lid, BTL businoss snd others Kyobo Life Insumnce Co.Ltd and ot KRW 604,990,400 464 1,604,990
RFOSCOM-TECH Ca., Ltd. FYUNGSAN SI Co., L1d Scoul Guarantee Insurence Co., Lid. KRW dL511,863 2
Hyundai Hysco Co.. Lid. Seoul Guarantee Insuronce Co., Ltd.  KRW 2,194,500,000 2,195
Dacwao Engineering Co. Ltd  Kwanima Solor Co., Lid. and othcr Hana Bank KRW 50,509,662,000 50510
Hyundni ENG Co., Ltd. Engincering Financlal Cooperative  KRW 65,937,188,179 65,937
PHP Co., Lad Eqoapt KB Bank KRW 387.849,000,000 387449
Dacwoo Cenent (Shandong)  SDAC Benk of China usD 34,000,000 40,360
Co,, Lud,
CNY 1,089,860.000 198,910
EUR 24,565,296 35,703
Yy §1,261.240,580 830421
KRW 4126376427919 4,126376
MYR 240,000,000 87,110
usp 1,792,604,988 2067411
LZ$ 6,319,920,000 4213

{(b) POSCO E&C Co., Ltd. has provided the completion guarantees for Samsung C&T Corporation
and Namkwang Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. amounting to W 2,748,647 million,
POSCO E&C Co., Ltd. provides payment guarantees on borrowings of customers such as Asset
Backed Commercial Paper amounted to W 695,343 million and Project Financing loan amounted
to W 444,836 million as of December 31, 2011.
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(c) Other commitments

POBCO

POSCO E&C Co,, Ltd

POSCO ICT Ce., Lid.

POSCO Specialty Steel
Co., Ltd.

POSCO entered nto bong-term contracts to purchase iron ore, coal, nickel and cthers. These
contracts gentrally have terms of more than three years and provide for periodic price
adjustments to the market price. As of December 31, 2011, 261 million tons of iron ore and 38
million tons of coal remained to be purchased under such long-term contracts.

POSCO entered into an agreement with Tangguh Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) Consortium in
Indonesia regarding the commitment to purchase 550 thousend tons of LNG annuglly for 20
years comnencing in August 2005. Purchase price is subject to change, following the change
of the monthly standard oil price (JCC) and also price ceiling is applicable.

As of December 31, 2011, POSCQ entered into commitments with Korea National Oil
Corporation for long-term foreign currency borrowings, which are limited up to the amount of
USD 6.86 million, USD 3.54 million and USD 4.12 million, respectively. The borrowings are
related to the exploration of gas hydvates in Aral Sea, Uzbekistan, the exploration of gas
hydrates in Namangan-Chust and the exploration of gas hydrates in Chinabad, west-Fergane,,
respectivaly. The repayment of borrowings depends on the suceess of the projects. POSCO is
nat liable for the repayment of full or part of the money borrowed if the respective project
fails, POSCO has agreed to pay a certain portion of its profits under certain conditions, as
defined by borrowing agreements.

To contracters involved in some of the construction contracts operator and financial nstitutions
by agreement with the work of the operating funds operator W 81,254 million deposit. POSCQ
E&C Co., Ltd manage the deposit accounts as a memorandum account without separate
accounting treatment reflecting the economic substance because the operator is the owner of
above-mentioned account,

POSCO E&C Co., Ltd has bank overdraft agreements of up to ¥ 20,000 million with Woori
Benk which is included in the limit of comprehensive loan agreements and W 3,000 million with
Korea Exchange Bank. Also POSCO E&C Co., Ltd. has comprehensive loan agreements of
up to W 260,000 million and USD 308 million with Woorl Bank and W 53,000 million with
Korea Exchange Bank.

POSCO ICT Co., Ltd. has entered into the repayment agreement with SMS Energy Co.,Lid.,
which borrowed money from several lenders including Hana Bank, for its new and renewable
energy business. According to the agreement, if the borrower cannot redeem the loan,
POSCO ICT Co., Ltd. should repay or undertake it amounting to W 300,126 million and should
take charge of revenues from selling ¢lectric power after the repayment. Also, if the borrawer
cannot run the new and renewable energy business due to default and bankruptey, POSCO
ICT Co., Ltd. may acquire the business unit from the borrower.

POSCO Specialty Steel Co., Ltd. has a loan agreement, secured by trade accounts receivable,
of up to ¥280,000 million with Woori Bank and others. POSCO Specialty Steel Co., Ltd. has
used W 147,547 million of this loan agreement,

POSCQO Specialty Steel Co., Ltd, has agreements with Woori Bank and nine other banks for
opening letters of credit of up to USD 98 million, and for a loan of up to W102,255 million,
POSCO Specialty Steel Co., Ltd. has used USD 0.6 million, CHF L.6 million, JPY 95 million
and EUR 0.6 milion for opening letters of credit and W 9,737 million for a loan.
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(d) Litigation in progress

As of December 2011, the Compeny and certain subsidiaries are defendants in legal actions arising
from the normal course of business. Details of amount claimed are as follows:

(i mitfions of Wou, i thonsnad of foreign curreacies)

Company Legal nctions Amount Legal equivalent Description
nmownt
POSCO 12 KRW 8,806 8,806 Lawsuit on the chim for damages
POSCO E&C Co, Lid. 44 KRW 31067 31067 Lawsuit on the elim for payment
POSCO P&S Co., Lid 1 KRW 9 931  Lawsuit on the claim for damages
POSCO Plani Engrineering Co., Lid 4 KRW 1088 3088 Lawsult o the olaim for payment
POSCO ICT Co., Lad. 8 KRW 2211 2211 Lawsuil ¢n the chim for payment
Seoung Gwang Co,, Lid. 2 KRW 2277 2277  Imposed high tax rate
POSCO E&C (Chima) Co,, Ltd. | CNY 3790 692 Lowsuil on the clrim for payment of work compled
related with the subceniracior and second
POSCO Eni Ca,, Ltd. Lmwvsuit on the elaim for damages
fecme ﬂy{.":::‘:mm g Co. 8 KRW 2074 20,74 ¥
POSBRO Co,, Lad. 1 KRW 435 435 Lawsuit on the claim for payment
Dacwoo International Corporation 1 CNY 30,000 5475 Lawsuk on the claim for damnpes
1 EUR 5,000 TATI
1 INR 4458849 97025
3 KW Tl 7L
3 ush 124 951
{ uYu 1,103 &6

The Company believes that although the outcome of these matiers is uncertain, the impacts of these
matters are not expected to be material to the Company.

(e) Other contingencies

As of December 31, 2011, POSCO has provided three blank promissory notes and one blank check
to Korea Resources Corporation as collateral for long-term domestic borrowings, and has provided
six blank promissory notes and three blank checks to Korea National Oil Corporation as coliateral
for long-term foreign currency borrowings.

As of December 31, 2011, POSCO E&C Co., Ltd. has provided ten blank promissory notes, ten
blank checks and six other notes, amounting to ‘W61,704 million approximately, to Korea Housing
Guarantee Co., Ltd. and other financial institutions as collateral for agreements and outstanding
loans,

Daewoo International Co., Ltd has provided fifty-six blank promissory notes to Korea National Qil
Corporation as coliateral for the guarantee on performance for contracts and others.
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36. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

(a) Adjustments for operating cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Depreciation (*1) W 2,133,011 2,960,550
Amortization 133,288 75,344
Finance income (*2) (1,734,280) (879,110)
Finance costs (*2) 2,245957 1,278,630
Income tax expense 1,068,109 1,081,472
Share of profit or loss of equity-accounted investees {50,569) (182,657)
Accrual of severance benefits 236,999 173,97
Bad debt expenses 45477 60,266
Others 186,374 49,449
W 4,264,366 4,617,915

(*1) Depreciation expense of investment properties is included.
(*2) Finance income and finance costs do not contain gains or losses on foreign currency
transaction and gains or losses on foreign currency translation.

(b) Changes in operating assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Trade accounts and notes receivable W {2,402,346) (538,949)
Other financial assets {187,607) 226,211
Inventories (2,538,178) (3,518,927)
QOther current assets (310,397) (137,246)
Other long-term assets 47,929 (77912)
Accounts payable 265993 (342,177
Other financial liabilities 260,306 35,008
Qther current liabilities 384,943 185,226
Provisions (36,511) 9,157
Payment of severance benefits {574,759) (90,951)
Plan assets 252,61 (140,173)
QOther long-term liabilities {12,791) {62,737)
W (4,850,747 (4,453,470)
|
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37. Operating Segments

(a) Our operating businesses are organized based on the nature of markets and customers. We have
four reportable operating segments— steel, construction, trading and others. The steel segment
includes production of steel products and revenue of such products. The engineering and
construction segment includes planning, designing and construction of industrial plants, civil
engineering projects and commercial and residential buildings, both in Korea and overseas. The
trading segment consists of exporting and importing a wide range of steel products and raw
materials that are both obtained from and supplied to POSCO, as well as between other suppliers
and purchasers in Korea and overseas.

(b) The segment results are measured based on amounts in accordance with K-IFRS without any
adjustment for corporate allocations and segment profit is after tax amounts. The segment assets
and liabilities are measured based on total assets and liabilities in accordance with K-IFRS without
any adjustment for corporate allocations.

{c) Revenue and segment profit of each segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are
as follows:

1} For the year ended December 31, 2011

Consofidation

fir nuliions of Wou) Stewl Trading Construction Others adfusiments (*1) Totn)
Ext¢rmal revenuos 39,151930 21001356 5476209 32130 - 68,038,725
Inizom] rovemmes M7.138610) {7,525355) 12,996.933) (2446417) - [30,107,515)
Inicrest income 154611 43,842 2,744 12,025 {27.048) 21623
Inleeest axporsas 551478 03,532 65,050 LI0613 36320 788748
PRopreciation and simarizion 2,428,182 37320 k1 %5t 178429 (108,870) 1266299
Blaro of profil or loss of

equiy-accomned iwcsices {33,368) - - (6.8488) 90,818 50,860
Incomne (ax expense ILL1L09 B 12536 1GAS4 {11792 1,068.109
Scgments profx 3689461 193208 154618 155277 {480,368) 3714296
Isvestmenk i a3sockios 14,226,687 1899762 918079 186,400 (13.306,434) 3834504
Actuisiion al non-currenl sssets w 9385381 GOT076 207519 504514 (341 343) 10583247

(*1) Consolidation adjustment means eliminated intercompany transactions, residuals, unrealized
profit and loss related to preparing consolidated financial statements.

2) For the year ended December 31, 2010

Consolldation

fin niilions of Wou} Steel Trading Construction Others adjustmenis(*1) Total
External revenucs 3552297 6235030 4,348,796 1,775,056 - 47887255
Intemal revenues (10,725.583) {3,174342) £3,574.569) {1,104.332} - (18,578.926)
Ineror ncoms 243,306 3B 25312 13985 [3.505) w2008
Intecost expeniey 42804 27858 60292 91,799 (18.001) 586,883
Drepracition and smortization enr 165613 30543 74079 (39560 1.025893
Share of peofit or losa of

equily-occounted investces (1,324) (852) - (9.516) 194,348 182,656
Incomns lax expense 1,023,136 (4967} 69,780 5080 poXrk} 1081472
Sogments proft 4088737 MO 156,183 12913 (266,195) 4,185,551
Investment in associnle 11,694,102 1,564,760 G0|,55% 39,3458 (10693.841) 3.3506425
Acquisition of non-current assets w 10500517 669 4SS 169,591 1480,715 3,116,884 15937192

(*1) Consolidation adjustment means eliminated intercompany transactions, residuals, unrealized
profit and loss related to preparing consolidated financial statements.
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follows:

1) December 31, 2011

(d) Pinancial positions of each segment as December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

Consolidation
{in millions of Won) Steel Trading Coustruction Others adjastments (*1) Totrd
Assels
Current aascls 20,943,153 7344403 6,770417 3,193,i62 (5,194,327 33556910
Non-current asses 47.018.230 427,138 1.904.281 3470135 {11.906.874) 44351927
57.961.383 12.120.560 3764608 6663297 {17,101.101) 78.408.837
Liobilitics
Currerd linbililies 11,421,186 1150414 4324006 2238771 (3.529,110) 19635357
Non-current tabiltics 11.748.724 2556208 1230001 2289512 243116 18,073,561
23169910 9,706,622 3354007 4528283 (5.279.004) 37678018

(*1) Consolidation adjustment means eliminated intercompany transactions, residuals, unrealized
profit and loss related to preparing consolidated financial staternents.

2) December 31, 2010

Consolllation
(in millions of Won) Steel Trading Constructlon Qihets ndjpstments (Y1) Tatal
Assols
Curren assats 18,484,564 6,144,044 4735440 2030014 (3,721.904) 27672371
Nonecurrent orscts 42289172 3461662 1.741.701 2.948.123 (8,004,609} 41, 746049
60,773,736 9.005.706 6477360 4.978.137 (12,416,513} 69418426
Lisbilities
Curren Habilies 11,171,303 3.864,783 3,174,557 1,650,105 {3.584,131) 18.276,777
Non-cwment Habilives 8308810 1654249 457.709 1.757.701 336,014 12,604,282
19,570,113 7319031 3532366 3407.866 {3.248.117) 30381259

(*1) Consolidation adjustment means eliminated intercompany transactions, residuals, unrealized
profit and loss related to preparing consolidated financial statements.

3) January 1, 2010

Consolldntion

(in millions of Wen) Steel Trading Coustruction Others adjustments {*1) ‘Total
Asgels
Curren assets 16,581,002 868,257 4,013,112 1395054 (2428070) 204298355
Non-current Eabittics 33.832.385 484,705 1903473 2223.557 (7347.28) 31.007.292
30411387 1353462 5916585 36185)t (9.773.208) 31.522.147
Liobies
Curront hiabifties 6,319,853 $32316 27478258 1 239,736 (H125.709) 0,013,631
Non-currant Enbilitios 1475908 4906 1018238 993312 {314.780) 9179834
13,795461 $30222 3.766.113 223348 (2:440.579) 18,193,463

(*1) Consolidation adjustment means eliminated intercompany transactions, residuals, unrealized
profit and loss related to preparing consolidated financial statements.
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(€} As of December 31, 2011, 2010, adjustment for segment’s profit and loss differences are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Segments profit 4,194,654 4,451,847
Elimination of intersegment profits (480,368) (266,196)
Income tax expense 1,068,109 1,081,472
Profit before income tax expense 4,782,395 5,267,123

(f) Revenue by geographic area for years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Domestic
Japan
China
(Asia
North America
Others

December 31,2011 December 31, 20190
W 53,086,926 37,759,641
2,386,578 1,503,703
6,070,588 5,133,279
2,645428 1,763,108
1,281,906 426,138
2,567,299 1,301,386
W 68,938,725 47.887,255

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical

location of customers.

(g) Non-current assets by geographic area as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,

2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won}

Domestic
Japan

China

Asia

North America
Others

December 31,2011 December 31,2010  January 1, 2010
W 29,386,052 27,145,016 21,141,361
320,009 292,742 267,777
1,474,983 1,384,862 1,047,802
1,752,302 754,191 744,832
110,702 72,809 29,460
1,181,597 900,654 423,953
W 34,225,645 30,550,274 23,655,185

Non-current assets by geographic area include investment property, property, plant and equipment,
goodwill and other intangible assets. In preparing information on the basis of geography, segment
non-current assets are based on the geographical location of the assets,
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38. Business Combinations

(a) Daewoo International Corporation

POSCO acquired a 68.15% controlling financial interest in Daewoo International Corporation, a
Korean Company listed on the Korean Securities Exchange (“Daewoo International™), for
W 3,371,481 million in cash in 2010. The acquisition was consummated on September 20, 2010.
Daewoo International is engaged in various business activities, such as providing export services,
export agent services, intermediary trading, manufacturing, distribution and natural resource
development. As a result of the acquisition, the Company expects to enhance its competitiveness
through securing the export capability and to create the synergy effect between the Company and
its subsidiaries. The results of operations of Daewoo International Corporation have been
consolidated from the date of acquisition. Therefore, comparability with POSCO’s consolidated
financial statements for prior years is impacted accordingly.

Goodwill recognised as a result of POSCO’s acquisition of Daewoo International Corporation was
as follows:

(in millions of Won) Amount
1. Consideration transferred W 3371481 O
II. Non-controlling interests (*1) 1,042,678 -
Total 4,414,159
I1. Acquired identifiable assets and liabilities
[Assets]
Cash and cash equivalents 403,971
Trade accounts and notes receivable and other financial assets 2,881,084
Inventories 722,807
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,182,679
Other assets 1,642,274
Total 8,832,815
[Liabilities]
Trade accounts and notes payable and other financial liabilites 1,058,922
Borrowings 3,733,623
Other liabilities 790,033
Total 5,582,578
Total acquired net assets 3,250,237
V1. Goodwill recognized W 1,163,922

(*1) Non-controlling interests are measured by their proportion of fair value of net assets
identifiable.
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The fair value of property, piant and equipment and intangible assets (customer relationship and
trademark) have been determined based on an independent valuation.

If the Company had acquired Daewoo International Corporation as of January 1, 2010,
consolidated sales and net income for the year ended December 31, 2010 would have been
W 57,967,590 million and W 4,129,693 million, respectively. The Company’s consolidated
sales and net income for the period September 20, 2010 through December 31, 2010 were
W 3,951,609 million and W 870,295 million, respectively.

(b) POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited.

The Company has acquired shares in POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited. from the previous
largest shareholder on September 23, 2011 to strengthen global competitiveness and preoccupy in
stainless steel market. The Company obtained control of POSCO-Thainox Public Company
Limited. since the percentage of shares increased from 15.39% to 75.32%. Goodwill recognised
in this business combination is as follows:

{in millions of Won) Amount

1. Consideration transferred

Acquisition cost of existing shares W 42,302
Fair value adjustment of existing shares (*1) 57,080
Cash 390474
Total 489,856
II. Non-controlling interests (*2) 121 413
Total 611,269
III. Acquired identifiable assets and liabilities
[Assets]
Cash and cash equivalents 62,080
Trade accounts and notes receivable and other financial assets 102,464
Inventories 149,901
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 340,487
Other assets 20,120
Total 675,061
[Liabilities)
Trade accounts and notes payable and other financial liabilities 147,382
Borrowings 11,803
Other liabilities 23,867
Total 183,052
Total acquired net assets 492,009
V1. Goodwill recognized W 119.260
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(*1) Fair value adjustment of W 57,080 million was calculated by revaluing existing shares to
fair value, which was recognised as other operating income.

(*2) Non-controlling interests are measured by their proportion of fair value of net assets
identifiable.

After obtaining control, Company acquired additional 19.61% of shares amounting to ¥ 126,927
million through tender offer. In results, the percentage of shares increased from 75.32% to 94.93% as
of December 31, 2011. Carrying value of POSCO-Thainox Public Company’s net assets is
W 667,571 million. Regarding this transaction, non-controiling interests decreased by W 95,885
million and related differential amounts amounting to W 31,043 million was deducted from
consolidated capital surplus since it is equity transaction between consolidated entities.

If the Company had acquired POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited as of 1 January, 2011, sales
and net income in the consolidated financial statement are W 69,243,204 million and W 3,726,225
million, respectively. After acquisition date, sales and net income of this subsidiary are W 92,798
million and W 11,658 million, respectively.

39, Transition to K-IFRS

The previously issued consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2010 and the statements
of financial position at the date of transition are stated in accordance with previous GAAP. However
these consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with K-IFRS 1101 “First-
time Adoption of Korean International Financial Reporting Standards”.

Accordingly, the Company adjusted the financial statements as of December 31, 2010 and previous
statements of financial position at the date of transition reported in accordance with previous GAAP.
The transition from previous GAAP to K-IFRS affected its reported financial position, financial
- performance and cash flows is as follows:

(8) Exemptions elected from K-IFRS 1101 “First-time Adoption of Korean International Financial
Reporting Standards” by the Company

The Company has elected to use one or more of the exemptions in accordance with K-IFRS No.
1101 for the preparation of statements of financial position at the date of transition and applied the
following optional exemptions.

1) Business combination

The Company has not retrogpectively applied the business combinations that took place prior to
the date of transition to K-IFRS.

2) Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment

The Company has elected to use the revaluations of prior to the date of transition to K-IFRS as
deemed cost at the date of transition for certain items of property, plant and equipment and use
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the fair value at the date of transition as deemed cost at the date of transition for certain
machinery and equipment.

3) Borrowing costs

The Company has capitalized borrowing costs to the qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalization is on or after the transition date to K-IFRS .

4) Cumulative translation differences

The Company has elected to set the previcusly cumulative translation differences to zero at the
date of transition and these exemption are applied to al] foreign operations.

5) Share-based payment transactions

The Company has not retrospectively applied K-IFRS accounting requirements to cash-settled
share-based payment transactions that took place prior to the date of transition to K-IFRS,

6) Leases
For arrangements existing at the date of transition to K-IFRS, the Company determined whether

the arrangements were lease arrangements based on the facts and circumstances at the date of
transition.
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(b) The significant adjustments regarding transition to K-IFRS are as follows:
1) Employee Benefits

Under previous GAAP, the Company recognized the amount of accrued severance benefits
assuming all eligible employees and directors with at least one year of service were to terminate
their employment as of the date of statement of financial position. Under K-IFRS, the
Company recognized defined benefit obligation based on actuarial assumptions.

2) Goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase

Under previous GAAP, the Company amortized goodwill acquired in a business combination on
a straight-line method of less than 20 years and a gain from a bargain purchase reversed in
weighted average useful life of depreciable assets, Under K-IFRS, goodwill is not amortized,
but is tested for impairment annually. Also, a gain from a bargain purchase is recognized in
profit or loss on the acquisition date.

3) Transfer of financial assets
Under previous GAAP, the Company recognized transfer of the financial assets to financial
- institution as disposal transaction when the control is transferred. Under K-TFRS, if the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is
recognized in the financial liabilities instead of derecognition of financial assets.
4) Deferred taxes
Under previous GAAP, the Company recognized deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities as
the difference between the book base and its tax base regarding the investment in subsidiaries
and others. However, under K-IFRS, the Company recognizes deferred tax assets or deferred
tax liabilities considering how the temporary differences will be realized.
5) A lot-solid apartment after rental

Under previous GAAP, a lot-solid apartment after rental is accounted for as an operating lease.
Under K-IFRS, a lot-solid apartinent of the rental is accounted for as a finance lease.
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POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

{c) Changes in scope of subsidiaries

Inchsion(35)

Exclusion(5)

Chonges

Subsidiaries

[nchuded in the scope of consolidation
under K-IFRS. These entiies wore ot
consolidated under K-GAAP since thei
tolal assets were less than W 10 billion,

Included i the scope of consolidation
under K-IFRS, SIC)2: Consolidation-
Special Purpose Entitics

The Company owns less than 50% of
voting power. These emtitiss are exchued
from the scope of consolidation ossuming
that tho Company does not have ds facto
control,

PT. POSNESIA, Qingdac Pos-metal Co., Lid.,, POSCO E&C India Private Lid,,
POSCO E&C SMART, Pohang SFC Co., Ltd, POSWITH Co., Lud, Basis
Industries, Dalian POSCON Dongbang Aulomatic Co., Lid., SANPU TRADING
CQ., LTD., Zhangfiagang BLZ Polang intemationa] Trading Co., Ltd, POSCO
Austrnlio OP Limited, POSCO Mexico Human Tech., POSCO Meako East Steel
Distribution Center Co., Ltd, POSTECH BD Newundestaking fimd, POSCO Gulf
Logistics LLC., POSBRO Co,, Lid., POSCO ICT-Chira, DWEMEX S.A.DE
C.V., POS MPFC Servicics de C.V., EUROTALY 5.A., POSCO South East Asia
Pre, Ltd., VECTUS Lid., POMIC Co., Ltd,, POSCO Maharashira Stee) Pyt Lid,,
POSCO India Chennai Stecl Processing Centre Pvt. Ltd., POSCO Twkey Nilufer
Processing Canter , POSCO Viemam Ha Noi Processing Cenler Co., Lid,
FOSCO (Laoning) Auwtoenotive Processing Center Co., L., POSCO E&C
Venczuel C.A, POSFINE Co., Lid, PT. MRI, Mapo high broad parking Co.,
Led., Dakos Co., Lid, POSCALCIUM Campany, Lid

ZEUS(Cayman) Lid.

Metapolis Co,, Ltd.,, POSMATE Co., Lid,, POSCO M-TECH Ca., Licl, Universa)
Studios Resort Asset Management Corp., VSC POSCO Stee] Cotporation

(d) Effects on financial position, financial performance and cash flows by the transition from previous
GAAP to K-IFRS

1) Reconciliations of the financial position on January 1, 2010:

(in millions of Won)

Previous GAAP

Adjustments :

Changes of consolidation

Revaluation of machinery and equipment
Transfer of a financial asset

Recognition of financial guarantee lizbilities
Reversal of negative goodwill

Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liabilities

Finance lease

Construction contracts
Other adjustments
Deferred tax effect

Total adjustments

K-IFRS

Tatal Total Total
assets Habilitles equity
hid 30,311,748 18,647,434 31,664,314
(455814) (526,348) 70,534
1,939,001 - 1,939,001
111,759 111,932 (173)
6,205 6,295 -
10,352 . 10,352
{63) 36,603 (36,666)
(355,899) (359,542) 3,643
443,066 428,736 19,330
(192,101} 467 {192,568)
(296,198} (152,112) {144.086)
1,215,398 {453,96%) 1,669,367
hid 51,527,146 18,193465 33,333,681
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POSCO
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2) Reconciliation of financial position as of December 31, 2010 and the financial performance for
the year ended December 31, 2010

Total
Total Tatal Total comprohisnsive
(o wiillions af Won) usgels Uabliitles equity Net income income
Previous GAAP W (7.945.933 30.744.512 37201 421 4217895 4.840.977
Adjusimionts :
Chonges in scope of consolidated cotnpanics (1.246,713) (585,200) (261,513) 206,559 130970
Revaluation of maclinary and cquipment 1,633,056 - 1,632,056 (305,945) {305,945)
Transfer of # Mmancial agsel 1344849 1,338,732 6,117 1535 1,635
Recognition of financial guarantee linbiliies 21,304 27443 (6.139) (1,618) (L.618)
Reversal of negative poodwill 93819 “ 9819 9819 9319
Withdrawal of amortization on goodwil 68,364 - 68,364 68364 68,364
Actarial vahwtion of defined benefi labibities (4,067) 91,357 (95424) 144073 (8,052)
Finance kase (541.848) {557.959) 1511t 11,469 15469
Conginiction contracts 367427 339,184 28243 {2942) (2,942)
Cuplialzation of Financial cosl 63,382 92,186 {28.204) 1,733 1,133
Odr adjustiments 39 160492 {260,581) (221402} (35,830)
Doferved tax effect (241.991) (469.488) 227497 35881 55381
Totat adhusiments — 1472493 136,747 1,335,746 {32,044) (75536)
K-IFRS had 69418426 10,581,259 18,537,067 4,185,651 4765441
3).Cash flow statement

Under K-IFRS, interest received, interest paid and income taxes paid which were presented using
indirect method under the previous GAAP are presented using direct method as separate line
items of cash flow operating activities. Also, effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
which were presented as cash flows from operating activities under the previous GAAP are

presented as a separate line item from cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
POSCO:

We have audited the accompanying separate statements of financial position of POSCO (the
“Coﬁlpany”) as of December 31, 2011, 2010, and January 1, 2010 and related separate statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial
statements in accordance with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
Korea. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the separate financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the separate financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obteined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

In our opinion, the separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010
and the results of itz operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
in accordance with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

As described in note 12 to the financial statements, the Company changed the useful life of major
machinery and equipment from 8 years to 15 years from January 1, 2011. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, this change resulted in a reduction in depreciation expenses of 1,200,505
million,



The procedures and practices utilized in the Republic of Korea to audit such separate financial
statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly,
this report and the accompanying separate financial statements are for use by those knowledgeable
about Korean auditing standards and their application in practice.

Seoul, Korea
Marceh 8, 2012

This report is effective as of March 8, 2012, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or
circumstances, which may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report,
could have a material impact on the accompanying scparate financial statements and notes thereto.
Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that the above audit report has not been
updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.




POSCO
Separate Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010

{in millions of Wou) December 31, December3l, Joanuary 1,
Notes 2011 2010 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,19 W 1,137,882 672426 626,782
Trade accounts and notes receivable, net 6,1934 4,220,242 3,548,448 2,951,783
Other short-term financial assets 709,34 1,381,463 2,754,319 6,304,563
[nventories 8 7.144,709 5,998,545 2,996,325
Assets held for sale 12 16,887 - -
Other current assets 9 23,5612 19,866 20409
Total current assets 13,924,795 12,993,604 12,899,362
Lcmé—lnrm trade accounts and noles receivable, net  6,19,34 24 24 1,306
Other long-term financial assets 719,34 3,833,058 5,015,783 4438130
Investments in subsidiaries and associates 10 12,824,776 10,470,156 5,787,831
Investment property, net 11 117,418 92,273 104,362
Property, plant and equipment, net 12 21,533,135 20,011,110 18,412,368
intangible assets, net 13 222,896 229,137 201,614
Otber long-term nssets 9 271,774 274,139 8,705
Tofal non-current nssets 38,803,081 36,092,622 28,954,816
Total assets W 52721876 49,086,226 41,854,678

See accompanying noles to the separate financial statements.
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POSCO

Separate Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010

(in millions of Won}

Liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Shori-lerm borrowings and
current instalinents of long-terin borrowings
Other short-term financial liabillliss
Current Income tax linbilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities

Total eurrent ligbllities

Loag-term borrowings,

excluding current mstaliments
Oithor long-term financial labilitiss
Defined benefit obligations
Deferred tax Jiabditics
Other long-term liabilities

- Toinl non-current labilities
‘Foinl linbilities

Equity
Share capital
Capital surplus
Reserves
Treasury shares
Retained earnings

Totat equity

Total liabilities and equity

December 31, December 31, January 1,
Notes 2011 2010 2010

19,34 W 1,395,846 1,310,377 739,746

6,14,19 2,294,380 3,116,364 699,849

15,1934 1,089,298 958,081 1,157314

i) 182,715 594,539 290,638

16 4451 0,582 5,154

18 48455 62,011 61,636

5,015,145 6,051,454 2954337

704,19 9,338,016 6,296,633 5,681,243

15,19 147,299 52,166 100,757

17 176,648 324,003 216823

3 448,552 334,199 231995

18 4,200 4276 6277

10,114,715 7011277 6,243,095

15,129,860 13,062,731 9,197432

20 482403 482403 482,403

20 1,227,692 1,158,539 1,158,539

21 156,707 1,079,038 702,052
22 {2,391,406) (2,403,263) (2,403,263)

22 18,122,520 35,706,778 32,717,515

137,598,016 36,023,495 32,657,246

W 52,127,876 49,086,226 41,854,678

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.
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POSCO
Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(in millions of Won,
except per share information)

Notes 2011 2010

Revenue 2534 W 39,171,703 32,582,036
Cost of sales 2934 (33,077,807) {26,171,690)
Gross profit 6,093,896 6,410,346
Selling and administrative expenses

Administrative expenses 19,26,29 (846,332) (722,426)

Selling expenses 26,29 (917,182) (783,796)
Other operating income 28,34 45,640 81,909
Other operating expenses 19,28,29,34 (179,993) (201,605)
Operating profit 33 4,196,029 4,784,518
Fmancial income and costs

Financial income 19,30 1,240,359 960,076

Financial costs 19,30 {1,370,668) {1,067,240)

{5 Profit before Income tax 4,065,720 4,677,354

Income tax expense 31 {876,875) {892,993)
Profit for the year 3,188,845 3,784,361
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Net changes in fair value of

- available-for-sale investments 7,21 (922,331) 376,986

Defined benefit plan actuarial loss 17 (2,145) (101,802)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax (924476) 275,184
Total comprehensive income, net of tax W 2,264,369 4,059,545
Basic and diluted earnings per share 32 W 41,279 49,127

See accompanying notes io the separale financial statements.
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POSCO
Separate Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(in millions of Won) Note 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations W 4,112,650 4,349,686
Profit for the period 3,188,845 3,784,361
Adjustments 36 2,882,166 3,795,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 36 (1,958,361) (3,229,675)

Interest received 122212 251,126

Interest paid (378,490) (277,049)

Dividends received 267316 133,602

Income taxes paid {937,198) (570,065)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,186,490 3,887,300
Cash flows from investing actlvities
Disposal of short-term financial instraments 5,108,712 16971, 7178
Disposal of available-for-sale investments 392,519 125,386
Disposal of held-to-maturity investments - 20,000
Decrease in long-term loans 14,760 5435
Disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates 22,125 -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,404 (21,802)
Acquisition of short-term financial mivestments (3,731,276) (13,766,906)
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets (245,389) (177,030)
(" ' y Increase in long-term beans {20,039) (29,865)
- Acquisition of nvestements in subsidiaries and associates (2,275,307) (4,681,700
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (3,304,376) (4,245,572)
Acquisition of intangible assets (25,499) (24,664}
Qthers 145 (264.656)
Net cash used in investing activities (4.062,121) {6,089,596)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 5.693,070 4910,152
Increase in long-term financial liabifities 3,781 54,655
Disposal of treasury shares 164,384 -
Repayment of borrowings (3,686,447) (1,973,852)
Decrease in long-term finencial hablities (3,757 (49,719)
Acquisition of treasury shares (61,296) -
Payment of cash dividends (770,858) {693,296)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,338,877 2,247,940
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 463,246 45,644
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 672,426 626,782
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 2210 -
Cash and cash eqnivalents at end of the year W 1,137,882 £§72,426

C

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.
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PQSCO
Notes to Separate Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2011

1. Reporting Entity

POSCO (the “Company”) is the largest steel producer in Korea which was incorporated on April I,
1968, under the Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea to manufacture and sell steel rolled
products and plates in the domestic and overseas markets.

Thd shares of the Company have been listed on the Korea Exchange since 1988. The Company
owns and operates two steel plants (Pohang and Gwangyang) and one office in Korea, and it also

operates internationally through ten of its overseas liaison offices.

As of December 31, 2011, major shareholders are as follows:

Shareholders’ name Number of shares Ownership (%)

National Pension Service 5,837,323 6.81
Nippon Steel Corporation (*1) 4,394,712 5.04
SK Telecom Co., Ltd. 2,481,310 2.85
Pohang University of Science and Technology 1,905,000 2.18
Shinhan Financial Group Inc. (*2) 1,870,879 2.15
Others 70,597,611 80.97

87,186,835 100.00

(*1) Nippon Steel Corporation has American Depository Receipts (ADRs), each of which
represents 0.25 share of POSCO’s common share which has par value of W 5,000 per
share.

(*2) Include number of shares subsidiaries hold at the end of the reporting period under commercial
law.

As of December 31, 2011, the shares of the Company are listed on the Korea Exchange, while its
depository receipts are listed on the New Yotk, Tokyo and London Stock Exchanges.



POSCO
Notes to Separate Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2011

2. Statement of Compliance
Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Korean International
Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS"), as prescribed in the Act on External Audits of
Corporations.

K-IFRS is effective as of the fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2011. The Company has also
presented the comparative information in the separate financial statements in accordance with K-IFRS.

These financial statements are separate financial statements prepared in accordance with K-IFRS No.
1027 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” presented by a parent, an investor in an
assgciate or a venture in a jointly controlled entity, in which the investments are accounted for on the
basis of the direct equity interest rather than on the basis of the reported results and net assets of the
investees.

The Company’s date of transition to K-IFRS in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1101 "First-time
adoption of K-IFRS", is January 1, 2010, and the effect of the transition from Korean Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“K-GAAP") to K-IFRS on the Company’s reported financial
position and financial performance is explained in note 37.

The separate financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on February 23,
2012,

Basis of measurement

The separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following material items in the statement of financial position, as described in the accounting policy
belaw,

1) Derivatives instruments are measured at fair value

2) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are measured at fair value

3} Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value

4) The liability for a cash-settled stock appreciation rights is measured at fair value

5) Defined benefit obligations are measured at the present value of the defined benefit obligations less
the fair value of the plan assets.

Functional and presentation currency

These separate financial statements are presented in Korean won, which is the Company’s functional
currency and the cutrency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.



POSCO
Notes to Separate Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2011

Use of estimates and judgements

Thd preparation of the financial statements in conformity with K-IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the separated financial statements is included in the following
notes:

® Note 12— Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

® Note 17— Employee Benefits

10
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POSCO
Notes to Separate Financial Statements, Continued

As of December 31, 2011

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The: significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparation of its seperate financial
statements are included below. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to a!l periods presented in these financial statements and in preparing the opening K-IFRS statement
of financial position at Januvary 1, 2010 for the purpose of the transition to K-IFRS, unless otherwise

indicated.
|

|
Tavestments in subsidiaries and associates

Thest separate financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with K-IFRS No, 1027
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”. The Company applied the cost method to
investments in subsidiaries and associates in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1027. The carrying
amount under previous K-GAAP on the date of transition to K-[FRS is considered to be the deemed
cost of investments in subsidiaries and associates on the date of transition. Dividends from a
subsidiary or associate are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

Forelgn currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. At the end of each
reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the original transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair walue in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date fair value is initially
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monstary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previous financial statements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When
gaing or losses on non-monetary items are recognized in other comprehensive income, exchange
components of those gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Conversely,
when gains or losses on non-monetary items are recognized in profit or loss, exchange components of
those gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, checking deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Equity investments are excluded from cash and cash
equivalents.

1




POSCO
Notes to Separate Financial Statements, Continued

As of December 31, 2011

Non-derivative financial assets

The Company recognizes and measures non-derivative financial assets by the following four
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The Company recognizes financial assets in the
separate statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Upon initial recognition, non-derivative financial assets are measured at their fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the asset’s acquisition or issuance.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
designated as such upon initial recognition. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss when incurred.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Held-to-maturity financial assets

A non-derivative financial asset with a fixed or determinable payment and fixed maturity, for
which the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as
held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method except for loans and receivables of
which the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financjal assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-
to-maturity investments or loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value, net of any tax effect, recorded in other
comprehensive income in equity. Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost. When a financial asset is derecognized or impairment losses are recognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognized
in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established,

12




POSCO
Notes to Separate Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2011

(c) Derecognition of non-derivative financial assets

The Company derecognizes non-derivative financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or the Company transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows from the financial asset as well as substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. Any interest in a transferred financial asset that is created or retained by the
Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred
financial assets, the Company continues to recognize the transferred financiel assets and
recognizes financial liabilities for the consideration received.

(f) Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the separate
statement of financial position only when the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts, and there is the intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are determined by
using the moving-weighted average method. The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of finished goods or work in
progress are based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as cost of goods
sold in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. Inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net
realizable value is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as a cost of
goods sold in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use, are classified as held for sale. In order to be classified as held for sale, the asset
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable.
The assets that are classified as non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of an asset to
fair value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell, up to
the cumulative impairment loss previously recognized in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1036
“Impairment of Assets”,

A non-current asset that is classified as held for sale is not depreciated.

Investment propexty

Propcrty held for the purpose of earning rentals is classified as investment property. Investment
property is measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, investment property is carried at depreciated cost less any accumulated impairment
losges.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and after initial recognition, are carried at
cost less accumnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of property, plant
and equipment includes expenditures arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the asset,
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. In addition, in the
preparation of the opening K-IFRS separated statement of financial position on the date of transition
to K-IFRS, the Company measures certain machinery and equipment at fair value at the date of
trangition, which is deemed cost, in accordance with K-IFRS No, 1101,

Subsequent costs are recognized in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at cost or, if
appropriate, as separate items if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing are recognized in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Property, plant and equipment, except for land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives that appropriately reflect the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed. A component that is significant compared to the total cost of property,
plant and equipment is depreciated over its separate usciul life. Lease assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
compering the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
are recognized in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives of the Company’s assets are as follows:

Buildings 20-40 years
Structures 20-40 years
i Machinery and equipment 15 years
Vehicles 4-9 years
Tools 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Lease assets 18 years

DcpreciatiOn methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting date
and adjusted, if appropriate. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
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Borrowing costs

Thq‘ Company capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized
in expense as incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that requires a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Financial assets and inventories that are manufactured or
oth¢rwise produced over a short period of time are not qualifying assets. Assets that are ready for
their intended use or sale when acquired are not qualifying assets.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
assét, the Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual
borij'owing costs incwired on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings. The Company immediately recognizes other borrowing
costs as an expense. To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company shall determine the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings
of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the jpurpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs that the Company
capitalizes during a period shall not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period.

Intangible assets

htahgible assets are measured initially at cost and, subsequently, are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Ambrtization of intangible assets except for goodwill is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. The residual
value of intangible assets is zero. However, as there are no foreseeable limits to the periods over
which club memberships are expected to be available for use, this intangible asset is determined as
having indefinite useful lives and not amortized.

Intellectual property rights 5-10 years

Port facilities usage rights 2-75 years
‘Development expenses 4 years
'Other intangible assets 4-20 years

Amortization periods and the amortization methods for intangible assets with finite useful lives are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives of intangible assets that are not being
amartized are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support indefinite useful life assessments for those assets. Changes are
accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.
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Expenditures on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Development
cprnditum are capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or
progess is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset.
Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits
embodled in the specific asset to which they relate. All other expenditures, including expenditures
on mtcrnally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Go{rernment grants

Gm}rernment grants are not recognized unless there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the grant’s conditions and that the grant will be received.

(a) Grants related to assets
Government grants whose primary condition js that the Company purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire long-term assets are deducted in calculating the carrying amount of the asset.

The grants are recognized in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset as reduced
depreciation expense,

(b) Grants related to income

Government grants which are intended to give immediate financial support to the Company with
no future related costs are recognized as government grant income in profit or loss.
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Leﬁjse

Thd Company classifies and accounts for leases as either a finance or operating lease, depending on
the terms. Leases where the Company assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(2) Finance leases

;\t the commencement of the lease term, the Company recognizes as finance assets and finance
liabilities the lower amount of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Any initial direct costs
are added to the amount recognized as an assct.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The depreciable amount of a leased asset is allocated to each accounting period during the period

of expected use on a systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy the Company adopts

for depreciable assets that are owned. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will { U
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the

lease term and its useful life. Management reviews the indication of whether the leased asset

may be impaired each reporting period.

(b) bperating leases
Leases obligations under operationg leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis

pver the lease term. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.
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Imﬁairment for financial assets

| A fipancial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
| objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
| estimated reliably. However, losses expected as a result of future events, regardless of likelihood,
i are rlnot recognized.

! Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that
‘ comies to the attention of the holder of the asset about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor

(b) & breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

(c) the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting
 to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider

(d) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

(ej the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficuities

(f); observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
- from & group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease

C ‘tannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group.

In addition, for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale securities, a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

If ﬁli‘nancial assets have objective evidence that they are impaired, impairmeant [osses are measured and
recognized.

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
diffd#nce between its carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future cash flows
disc{ahnted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If it is not practicable to obtain the
instrument’s estimated future cash flows, impairment losses would be measured by using prices from
eny observable current market transactions. The Company can recognize impairment losses directly
or e$tab1ish a provision to cover impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impdirmcnt was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously
recognized impairment loss shall be reversed either directly or by adjusting an allowance account.
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(i) Fin%mcial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred on an unquoted equity instrument
thati is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative
ass#t that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment Josses shall not be reversed.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in other
comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not been derecognized.
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale shall not be reversed through profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss,
the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

Imﬁairment for non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other then assets arising from employee
benkefits, inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets held for sale, are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, itrespective of whether there is
any indication of impairment, are tested for impairment annually by comparing their recoverable
am(?unt to their carrying amount,

Management estimates the recoverable amount of an individual asset, if it is impossible to measure
the individual recoverable amount of an asset, then management estimates the recoverable amount of
cash-generating unit (“CGU”). A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
cosis to sell. The value in use is estimated by applying a pre-tax discount rate that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which
estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted, to the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss,

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately only if the
following criteria have been met: {(a) the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and
the embedded derivatives are not clearly and closely related to a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative that would meet the definition of a derivative, and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value
of separable embedded derivatives are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of other derivative financial instrument not designated as a hedging
instrument are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financlal Habilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or other financial liabilities in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial liabilities. The Company recognizes financial liabilities
in the separate statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading or
designated as such upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in
profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit of loss are
classified as other financial liabilities. At the date of initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
measured at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when it is extinguished {i.e. when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
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Emiﬂoyee benefits

(i) Shoh~tem employee benefits

(D

Short-term employee benefits are employec benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after
the ‘end of the period in which the employees render the related service. When an employee has
rendered service to the Company during an accounting period, the Company recognizes the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Retirement benefits: defined contribution plans

Wlfpn an employee has rendered service to the Company during a period, the Company recognizes the
coniribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued
expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for service before the end of the reporting period, the Company recognizes that
excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund.

(iii) Retirement benefits: defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other then a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair value of plan assets is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds that have maturity dates
app@ximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency
in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses
arisﬁng from actuarial assumption changes and experiential adjustments in other comprehensive
income when incurred.

When the fair value of plan assets exceeds the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
Company recognizes an asset, to the extent of the total of cumulative unrecognized past service cost
and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reduction in the future contributions to the plan.

Past service costs which are the change in the present value of the defined benefits obligation for
employee service in prior period, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or change to
post-employment benefits, is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately
following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the Company recognizes the past
service costs immediately.
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Sto{:k Appreciation Rights

The Company granted share options to executives as part of the reward for their services and is
accounting for the options as cash-settled share-based payment transactions. For cash-settled share-
baséd payment transactions, the Company measures the goods or services acquired and the liability
incurred at the fair value of the liability and recognizes the employment benefits and the liability
during the vesting period. Until the liability is settled, the Company remeasures the fair value of the
liabﬂ?ity at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognized
in profit or loss for the period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of & past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
reqt}ired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances are teken into
account in reaching the best estimate of a provision. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined at the present value of the expected future cash flows.

W11¢re some or all of the expenditures required 1o settle a provision are expected to be reimbursed by
anoliher party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated
as a separate asset.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimates. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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Shai‘e capital

Common stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of
comimon stock are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

When the Company repurchases its share capital, the amount of the consideration paid is recognized
asa deducnon from equity end classified as treasury shares. The profits or losses from the purchase,
dlsposai reissue, or retirement of treasury shares are not recognized as current profit or loss, If the
Conppany acquires and retains treasury shares, the consideration paid or received is directly
rccqgmzed in equity.

Revenue

The Company’s revenue from the sale of goods and the use of assets is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume

rebal;tes.
(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably. The appropriate timing for transfer of risks and rewards
varies depending on the individual terms and conditions of the sales contract. For international
sales, this timing depends on the type of incoterms of the contract.

(b) $crvices rendered

Service sales are mostly comprised of rental income. Rental income from investment property is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the texm of the leases.

Financial income and financial costs

Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial
assdts), dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in the
fairﬁvalue of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized in profit
or loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Financial costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and changes in the fair value of financial
ass:{ts at fair value through profit or loss. Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.
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Income tax

Inco;tmc tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. The taxable profit is different from the accounting profit for the
peribd since the taxable profit is calculated excluding the temporary differences, which will be taxable
ot deductible in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods, and non-taxable or non-
deductible items from the accounting profit.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized, using the asset-liability method, in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax iiability is recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
thaﬂ it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilized. However,
C H deférred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: taxable temporary differences
= arising on the initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting profit or loss nor

taxable income.

The Company recognizes a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, except to the extent that the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the terporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The Company recognizes a
deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying amount of & deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferrcd tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
(. : which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Defefrrcd tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
related current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
auth{prity and they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

Earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares, which is
presented at the end of the statement of comprehensive income. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
nurq‘ber of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, excluding treasury shares held.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Company for annual periods beginning afler January 1, 2011, and
the Company has not early adopted them.

(i) Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

The amendments require disclosing the nature of the transferred assets, their carrying amount, and the
description of risks and rewards for each class of transferred financial assets that are not derecognized
in their entirety. If the Company derecognizes transferred financial assets but still has their specific
risks and rewards, the amendments require additional disclosures on their cffect of risks. The
amendments will be applied prospectively for the Company’s annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2011. The Company believes that there would be additional disclosures impact upon applying
of this new standard.

(ii) Amendments to K-IFRS No. 101 9 “Employee Benefiis"”
The standard requires recognition of actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive
income and to calculate expected return on plan assets based on the rate used to discount the defined
benefit obligation. The standard will be applied retrospectively for the Company’s annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013, The Company is currently analyzing the effects of adopting
this standard.

(iii) K +IFRS No. 1113 “Fair Value Measurement”
The standard defines fair value and a single framework for fair value, and requires disclosures about
fair value measurements, The standard will be applied prospectively for the Company’s annual
periods beginning on or after Yanuary 1, 2013. The Company believes that there would be no
significant impact upon applying of this new standard.
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4, Fihancial risk management

The C‘ompany has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
credit risk

liquidity risk

market risk

operational risk

This! note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Comipany’s objectives, policies and processes for measuting and managing risk, and the Company’s
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial
statements.

(a) Risk management policy

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities.

The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

(b) Credit risk

Cyedit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers and investment securities. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of a nation
br an industry in which a customer operates its business does not have a significant influence on
credit risk. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
?losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a
specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss
component established for companies of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of
payment statistics for similar financial assets.

C
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{c) Lﬁquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
a#sociated with its financial liabilities that are setiled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
hbve sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company's cash flow from business, borrowing or financing is sufficient to meet the cash
requirement for the Company’s strategy investments. Management believes that the Company is
capable of raising funds by borrowing or financing if the Company is not able to generate cash
flow requirements from its operations. The Company has committed borrowing facilities with
various banks.

(d) Market risk management

Manﬁcet risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The goal of market risk management is optimization of profit
and icontrolling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits.

1) Currency risk

" The Company is exposed to currency risk for sales, purchases and borrowings in a currency
other than the functional currency, Korean Won. The Company’s general policy in respect of
foreign currency risks is to use a natural hedge whereby foreign currency income is utilized for
foreign currency expenditures. Remaining net exposures after the natural hedge are hedged
using derivative contracts such as forward exchange contracts. The Company's management
monitors currency risk regularly for hedging foreign exchange exposure.

2) Interest rate risk

The Company mostly borrows at fixed interest rates. The Company’s management monitors
interest rate risks regularly.
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(e) Managcment of capital risk

The fundamental goal of capital management is the maximization of shareholders’ value by means
of the stable dividend policy and the retirement of treasury shares. The capital structure of the
Cc)mpany consists of equity and net debt, deducting cash and cash equivalents from borrowings.
The Company applied the same financial risk management strategy that was applied in the
previous period.  The equity attributable to owners as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010
and January 1, 2010 is as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2610
Tatal borrowings 11,632,396 9412997 6,381,092
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,137,882 672,426 626,782
Net borrowings 10,494,514 8,740,571 5,754,310
Tatal equity 37,598,016 36,023,495 32,657,246
Net borrowings-to-equity ratio 27.91% 24.26% 17.62%

5. dash and Cash Equivalents

( :;4 Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

follows:

(in millions of Wen) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010

Checking accounts W 149,982 886 817

Time deposits 810,000 300,000 380,465

Money market trust 157,900 111,500 228,700

Money market funds 20,000 260,040 -

Cither cash and cash equivalents - - 16,800
1 W 1,137,382 672,426 626,782

29




3

\10

POSCO
Notes to Separate FInancial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2011

6. ’E‘rnde Accounts and Notes Receivable

Trade accounts and notes receivable as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,
2010 are as follows:

{in millions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
Current
- Trade accounts and notes receivable W 4222187 3,553,135 2,963,035
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts {1,945) {4,687) {11,252
4220242 3,548,448 2,951,783
Non-Current
. Trade accounts and notes receivable 252 252 1,875
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (228) {228) {562)
24 24 1,306
W 42,20,266 3548472 2,953,089

The trade accounts and notes receivable sold to financial institutions, for which the derecognition
conditions were not met, amounted to W 342,307 million, W 220,866 million and W 267,874
million as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, respectively. The
amonnts are included in borrowings (note 14).

7. (f)ther Financial Assets

(a) Other short-term financial assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,

2010 are as follows:
{in millions of Won) January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets held for trading W 50,132 182,208 795,811
Available-for-sak financial assets
Short-term available-for-sale securities (bonds) - - 20,230
Held-to-maturity investments
Current portion of held-to-maturity securities {bonds) - 1,978 20,000
Loans and other receivables
Short-term financial instruments (*1) 982,111 2,362,621 5280927
Cash deposits (*2) 17,175 14,101 10,666
Other accounts receivable, net 330616 174,965 137,560
Accrued income 10,585 28,888 49,087
Other checking accounts 1415 147 -
Allowance account for credit losses (10,571) {10,589 {10,618)

W 1381463 W 2754319 W 6,304,563

(*1) Short-term financial instruments amounting to W 1,670 million and % 830 million are
secured in relation to long term borrowings from a forestry association as of December 31, (-
2011 and 2010, respectively. -
{*2) Deposit is restricted in relation to government assigned project.
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() Other long-term financial assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,
2010 are as follows:

{in millions of Won} January 1,
2011 2010 2010

Available-for-sale investments

Long-term available-for-sale securities (bonds) w 15,045 il 104,895
Longsterm available-for-sale equity securities 3,716,014 4931,117 4271,392
Leng-term available-for-sale securlties 500 500 500
, {investment in capital)
Held-to-maturity investrents
Held-to-maturity securities (bonds) 29,903 29,830 31,675
Loan and other receivable
Cash deposits (*1) 40 40 40
Long-term loans 68,717 63437 39,007
Long-term other accounts receivable 3674 3,124 3,322
Deposits 13,618 2213 1,771
Allowance account for credit losses {14.453) (14,489} (14,472)
W 3,833,058 5,015,783 4,438,130

(*1) The Company is required to provide deposits to maintain checking accounts and,
accordingly, the withdrawal of these deposits is restricted.
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(c) Long-term available-for-sale equity securities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and
January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(In militons of Won) Baok Value
Number of Acquisition January |,
Shares Ovnership(%) cost 1 2010 20140
Murketable equity securities
f jNi;.'npoﬂ Steel Corporation 238,352,000 30 W 719,622 679,662 972,351 1,128,734
SK Telecom Oo., Ltd. (*1,2) 4,528,117 561 1,250,685 640,221 809,280 743,845
KB Finanacia! Group Ine. 15,454,067 4.00 715,336 560,983 786,950 783,015
Hyundni Heovy Indusiries Co., Lid. 1,477,000 1.94 343,506 379,589 854311 256,260
" MaocArthur Conl Limited (*3) - - . . 314,446 249431
© Shinhan Financinl Group inc. 4,369,881 092 28,778 173,703 231,167 188,770
" Hena Financial Group Inc. 4,663,776 152 20,998 165,797 20,942 153,438
" Thainox Public Stainless Co., Lid, (*4) - - - . 70,724 67,659
- Others {11 companies) 169,561 174,863 154,189 79,190
; 3457417 2,774,838 4,195,360 3,650,351
Non.marketeble equity ilies
. Nacional Minerios S.A. (*5) 30,784,623 648 668,635 695,583 534,74 535,357
. 'The Siam Unitcd Steel (*5) 11,071,000 1230 34,658 oL119 65,013 65,1358
Dungbu Meial Co., Lid. (*5) 3,000,000 10,00 98,242 98,917 98,242 -
* Olhers (28 companies) (*6) 93,366 85,657 33,768 20,549
‘ £94.901 1,176 738,157 621,041
W 4352378 3,716,014 431,017 4,271,392

("1) As of December 31, 2011, 2,186,546 shares equivalent to 19,678,919 American depository
receipts (“ADRs”) of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. have been pledged as collateral for the
exchangeable bonds issued.

(*2) The Company recorded impairment loss for investment of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. amounting
to W 503,058 million prior to January 1, 2010, During the year ended December 31, 2011,
there was a firther significant decline in the fair value of shares of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. for
a prelonged period, which was considered as the objective evidence of impairment. Asa
result, an impairment losses of W 107,377 million was recognized in profit or loss in 2011.

(*3) The Company disposed all its investment in MacArthur Coal Limited with an cash
consideration of W 387,846 million and recognized related disposal gain amounting to
W 331,919 million in profit or loss in 2011, which primarily represents amount reclassified
from reserve to profit or loss upon disposal.

("‘4) It was reclassified from available-for-sale securities to investments in subsidiaries and
associates upon acquisition of additional 59.93% of shares in September 2011, After
obtaining control, the Company acquired additional 19.61% of shares through tender offer. In
results, the percentage of shares increased to 94.93% as of December 31, 2011.

(*5) The fair value of the investment is based on an analysis performed by an external professional
evaluation agency.

(*6) These non-marketable equity securities are recorded at cost since fair value cannot be reliably
measured.
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8. Inventories

Invejztoﬁes as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

! January 1,
{in millions of Won) 2011 2010 2010
Finished goods W 974,585 608,219 344,191
Semi-finished goods 1916411 1,441,128 843,720
By-products 7,610 5,542 4,281
Raw materials 1465347 1,704,831 696,492
Fuel and materials 596,100 524,077 405,003
Materials-in-transit 2,184,547 1,624,765 702,807
Others 575 576 522

‘ 7,145,175 5,999,138 2.997,016
Allowance for inventories valuation (466) (593) {691)

‘ W 7,144,709 5998,545 2.996.325

The;amount of valuation losses of inventories recognized as a cost of goods sold during the year
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are ¥ 466 million and W 593 million, respectively.

9. Other Assets

Other current assets and other long-term assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and
January 1, 2010 are as follows:

{in millions of Won) January 1,
; 2011 2010 2010
Other current assets
:Advance payments W 4,935 6,218 11,943
Prepaid expenses 18,677 13,648 B466
235612 19,866 20409
Other long-term assets
Long-term prepaid expenses 9,452 10,687 5332
Dishonored receivables 13 13 13
Others (*1) 262,322 263,459 4032
Less : Alkowance for doubtful accounts (13 (20) (672)
W 271,774 274,139 8,705

{*1) Includes guarantee deposits of W 257,878 million as of December 31, 2011 and December
i 31, 2010 in reletion to exploration of Australia Roy Hill iron ore mine.
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T
10. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

{(a) luvestlnents in subsidiaries and associates as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and
January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(i millions of Won) January 1,

| 2011 2010 2010

Subsidiaries W 11,621,134 967,778 5,260,593

Asgsaciates 1,203,642 798378 527,238
W 12824776 10470,156 5787831

(b) ;Details of subsidiaries and carrying values as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and
January 1, 2010 are as follows:

:(l.u nuittions of Wan)

1Domestic] Country  Principal operations o‘“(‘;,ﬁ 2011 2010 Ja';':;;g’ b

Daewoo [ntemnational Korea Trading 66.56 W 3,371,481 3,371,481 -
Co., Ltd.

IPOSCO E&C Korea Engincering and 89.53 1,510,716 1,510,716 1,063,089
Co., Ltd. construstion

‘POSCO Evergy Co., Lid. Korea Generation of electricity 100.00 649,148 649,148 649148

; (Fonmerly, POSCO Power Corp.)

POSCO Specinlty Steel Koren  Steel imanubecurisg and 100.00 628,842 628,842 628,842

' Co,, Ltd. sales

POSCO P&S Co., Lud. Korea Steel sales and service 95.31 421,927 421,927 421,927

POSCO AST Co., Lud, Korea Steel manuiseturing and 100.00 138,909 93,909 75603

sales

‘POSCO Coated & Korea Coated steel manufichuaing 56.87 108,421 108,421 108421

. Color

POSCO M-TECH Korca Packing matcrmks 48,85 107,278 - -

| Co., Ltd. (*1) mpmficturing

POSCO Chemtec Korea Manubicturing and sales 60.00 100,535 100,535 100,535

" Company Lid.

'POSCO ICT Ca., Lud. Korea  Computer hardware 72.54 70,990 70.990 70,990

ard software distribution

POS-HIMETAL Koren Steel manuiicturing and 65.00 49452 31,837 5,837

- CO., Ld, sales

POSCO Famiy Korea  Fiancial investment 69.93 40,000 20,000 -
Siratcgy Fund

Others (18 comparzes) 342,434 316,525 213375

7 W__7.540.133 7324.33) 3,337,767
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(in miftions of Won}

, .. Ownership January 1,
|Foreign| Country Principal operations (%) 2011 1010 2010
POSCO-Thainox Thailnd  Stainless stee! manufactuing 94.93 W 616,783 . -
Co,; Lid. (*2)

PT. KRAKATAU Indonesia  Steel manufactuting and soles .00 5371371 1,625 -
STEEL POSCO

PQSCO Australin Austraiis ~ Steel sakes 100.00 330,623 330,623 330,623
Pty. Lid. and mine development

Zhanpjiagang Pohang China Stainless steel manufncturing 58.60 285,664 233845 283845
Siainkess Steel Co., Lid,

POSCO WA Pry. Ltd. Australlia  Mine development 100.00 238,821 205,885 “

POSECO China Holding China Investment management 100.00 223436 208413 208413
Corp.

POSCO Maharashirn i Steel manufacturing and sales  100.00 252217 84,447 63872
Sted] Pvt. Lid.

POSCO-India Private India Steel manufacturing and sakes  100.00 184,815 108,538 108,538
Lud: .

Guangdong Pohang China Plate sieel manufacturing 84.52 163271 64,976 31,299
Coaped Steel Co., Lid.

POSCO-Viemam Viclnam  Steel manufacturing £5.00 157,031 158,206 159,629
Co., Ltd.

FQSCO VST Co., Lig. Victnam Stainless steel manulaciuring 93.63 145,649 105,348 71,901

POS¢0 America Corp. USA Trading-Sicel 99.43 140,381 117489 113510

POSCO Investment Hong Kong  Fnance 100.00 28,797 92,884 94,629
Co,, L.

POSCO-Mexico Mexico Plate steel manufncturing B0.68 86,163 62,581 62,581
Co., Ltd.

POSCO-JAPAN Japan Trading-Steel 100.00 68436 68436 63,436
Co., Ltd.

Qingdao Pohang China Stainbess stec] manulacloring 70.00 65,082 65,982 65982
Stainless Steel Co., Lid.

POSCO-CSPC Co., Lid. China Steel manufscturing and sales  90.00 62,484 49,439 49,420

Others (34 companies) 433,067 338245 210,139

4,081,000 2347447 1922826
: W IL62L134 9671778 5360,393

(*1) In 2011, this investment was reclassified to investment in subsidiaries from investment in
~ associates as the Company has the power over more than half of the voting rights by virtue of
. an agreement with Postech, which has 4,72% of ownership.

(*2) In 2011, it was reclassified to investment in subsidiaries from an available-for-sale investment as
the Company acquires an additional 79.54% of the ownership from the major stockholders and
others. After obtaining control, Company acquired additional 19.61% of shares through tender

- offer. In results, the percentage of shares increased from 75.32% to 94.93% as of December
31, 2011,
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(c) betails of associates and carrying values as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and

January 1, 2010 are as follows:

{in millions of Won)
fiDomestic|

Sungjin Geotsc Co., Lid.

SNNC Co., Lid.

POSCO M-TECH
. Co,, Ltd.
|Others (4 companies)

[Foreign]

POSCO-NPS Niobium
LLC.

NMC

‘COMPANHIA
SIDERURGICA
KOBRASCO

‘BX Steel POSCO Cold
. Rolled Sheet Co., Ltd.
Qthers (11 companies)

. Ovwnership Jonuary 1,
Country Principal operations (%) 2011 2010 2010
Korea Industrial machinery 26.34 W 159378 159878 -
manufacturing
Korea Logistics and warehouse 49.00 100,655 100,655 100,655
Keren Packing material - 107,278 5,989
manufacturing
23,678 17,532 18384
284211 385,343 125028
USA Mine development 50.00 364,609 - -
New Raw material 49,00 189,197 189,197 189,197
Caledonia manufacturing
Brazil Steel manufacturing 20.00 132,891 - -
Brazil Facilitics lease 50.00 98,962 98,962 98,962
China Steel manufacturing 25.00 63,983 64,383 63,029
and Sales
69,789 60493 49022
919431 413,035 402,210
W 1,203,642 793378 327,238
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11. Investment Property, Net

{a) Investment property as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as
follows:

;(in millions of Won) Janyary ¢,

‘ 2011 2010 2019
Acquisition cost w 166444 121,666 135,350
: Less: Accumulated depreciation (49,026) (29,393) (30,988)
; W 117418 92,273 104,362

The fair value of investment property as of December 31, 2011 is W 310,000 million,

(b) The changes in carrying value in investment property for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 are as follows:

1} For the year ended December 31, 2011

i’fn millions of Won)

3 Begloning  Acquisition Disposal Depreciation (*1) Others (*2) Ending
Land W 41377 W . W - W - W 1381 W 43258
Buildings 48514 86 (153) (2,955) 23284 68,776
Structures 1,882 - - (195) 3,697 5384
B W 92273 W 8. W (153) W (3150) _W__ 28362 W 117418

(*1) The useful life and depreciation method of investment property are identical to those of
property, plant and equipment.

(*2) Mainly includes assets transferred from property, plant and equipment in relation to change
in rental ratio and the purpose of use.

2) For the year ended December 31, 2010

(in millions of Won)

: Beginning Depreciation (*1) Others (*2) Endi_ng
Land W 47333 - (5,456) 41,877
Buildings 54,855 (2,060) (4.281) 48,514
Structures 2,174 (45) (247) 1,882

W 104,362 (2,105) (9.984) 92,273

(*1) The useful life and depreciation method of investment property are identical to those of
~ property, plant and equipment.
(*2) Mainly includes assets transferred to property, plant and equipment in relation to change in
rentzl ratio and the purpose of use.

37



POSCO

Notas to Separate Financlal Statements, Continued

As of December 31, 2011

ML

12. ?mpeﬂy, Plant and Equipment, Net

() ﬁropeny, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010

are as follows:

(in millions of Won) January 1,
1 2011 2010 2010

Cost W 42,575270 39,666,445 35,918,640
'Less : Accumulated depreciation (21,041,006) (19,655,335) (17,505,772)
‘Less : Accumulated impairment {1,129 - -
i W 21,533,135 20.01 lil 10 18{112&68

(b) The changes in carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31,

2011 and 2010 are as follows:

1) For the year ended December 31, 2011

ﬁn nxllions of Won} Beginning Acquisition (*1) Disposal Deprociation Impalanent
Land Woo1058204 W 00359 W (948) W - W

Bisildings 2502213 584977 (3.154) (228.836) Qm
Btrucrures 1942405 291,663 (1029 {155965) (142)
Machinery and equipment 11,736,629 2336617 36318 (1.301.849) (24,394)
Vekicls 22,753 5407 @) @799 -
Tools 27,807 24307 (13 (14077 (¥}
Farniture and fhuures 66,345 31,|53 @) (25.155) (5)
Lease assels 8518 - (637)
Construction-in-progross. 2.635,M6 3.393.445 -
‘ W 2000110 W__ 7007168 W Jm W (L738316) 24516

("'1) Includes acquisition cost transferred from construction-in-progress
expansion of Gwangyang sintering plates and coke establishment planis and others

amounting to W 3,703,723 million.

Others ("2.3) __Ending

W (138 W 1275384
23,130) 2,891,757
(6.384) 2,061,348
(14.356) 12916329

- 18,341

3z022

72334

. 8281

(3.719082) 210,159

W (3764783) W 21333135

in relation to the

(*2) The Company plans to dispose of equipment of existing steel manufacturing plant due to the
completion and expected use of new plant. Impairment losses amounting to W 24,816
million are recognized since the fair value less cost to sell exceeds the carrying amount of
related equipment. Book value of property, plant and equipment which are expected to be
sold by the first half of 2012, net of impairment recorded, in the amount of W 16,887
million, are reclassified to non-current assets held for sale.

{"'3) Includes assets transferred from construction-in-progress to intangible assets, other property,
plant and equipment and investment property.
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2) For the year ended December 31, 2010

(In millions of Won) Begianing Acquisition (*1) Dispossl Depreciation _ Others(*2) Ending

Land W 91453 W 155700 W (7398) W - W 5455 W 1068294
Biriklings 1,943,655 755928 (8:840) (192811) 4281 2,502,213
Structurcs 1477.745 565,020 (4,29 (125429) 29,298 1942405
Maghinery and equipment 10,142,068 3868845 @440 (2,207,565) (21879 11,736,629
Vehicles 16,802 14,094 (154) (7,989 - 2,753
Toals 16,737 19,389 w (8318) . 27807
Furniture and fixtures 50058 34,825 (60) (18478) - 66,345
Lease assels 9,555 - 637 - 8918
Construction-in-nrogress 3841712 4247.847 . (5453,813) 25635746

: W IS31808. ¥ 9661649 ..._f.ﬁ-im Heonen N N6 W 2001LU0,
("‘1) Includes acquisition cost transferred from construction-in-progress in relation to the expansion
' of Gwangyang sintering plates and coke establishment plates and others amounting to
- W 5,413,802 million.
(*2) Includes assets transferred from construction-in-progress to intangible assets, other property,
 plant and equipment and investment property.

(c) Borrowing costs capitalized and the capitalized interest rate for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010

Weighted average expenditure W 472258 W 48,080
Borrowing costs capitalized 21,823 2275
Capitalisation rate 4.62% 4.73%

(d) Based on a life asset study performed in 2011, the Company changed the useful life of certain
machinery and equipment in its steel business from 8 years to 15 years. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the depreciation costs decreased by W 1,200,505 million as a result of this
change in the usefut life.
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13. intangible Assets, Net

{(a) ﬁ]tangible assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(j'n miflions of Wonj} January 1,

: 2011 2010 2010
Acquisition cost W 893,196 853,218 946417
;Less : Accumulated depreciation {670,300) (624 .081) {744,803)

W 22 229.137 201,614

(b) Changes in carrying values of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

11) For the year ended December 31, 2011

(in millions of Won) Incrense Deeroase
Beginning Aeq(tf;;tlon Dovolopment Disposal Depreciution R“h::;r;“mn Ending
Intelioctus] property ights W 4,919 2,53 - {319) 757 . 6376
Membership (*1) 56,494 - . {214) . 01,757 44521
Devakipront expense 32,308 - 1,152 . (14,278) - 20,182
Port Ecilities usage rights 112,683 . . . (13,130) 99,553 -
Olber intamgble arsots 24,133 27,122 - 1)) (6,592) - a6 {
W__220.137 29,653 11,152 (524) (4757) (11,757) 222,896
(*1) Economic useful life of membership is indefinite.
(*2)Includes acquisition cost transferred from construction-in-progress amounting to W15,309
! million.
(*3) Memberships that should be returned after specific period are reclassified to financial
instruments. Reclassification amounts are present value of balance.
2) For the year ended December 31, 2010
(in millions of Won) Increase Decrease
Beginning Aeq(t:l;;uon Development Disposal Depreciation Ending
Intelectual property rights ¥ 3,028 2,458 - . (567) 4,919
Membership (* 1} 49,785 7815 - (L,106) - 56,454
Devebpment expense 28,030 - 15,046 - (10,768) 32,308
Port facilities usape righls 100,144 28,165 - - (15,626) 112,683
Gther imangble asscts 20,627 1,191 - - (9,085) 22,733
W 201,614 49,629 13,046 (1,106) 116,046) 229,137

- (*1} Economic life of membership is indefinite.
© (*2) Includes acquisition cost transferred from construction-in-progress amounting to
W 40,011 million.
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14. Borrowings

(a) ﬁprrowings as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

C

{In millions of Won) January I,
} 2011 2010 2010

Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings W 1,786,590 1,339,937 698,784

Current portion of long-lerm borrowings 757 750 .
wrrent portion of loans from foreign financial institutions 951 963 1,065

(Furrent portion of debentures 500,000 1,777,956 -
- Less : Cusrent portion of discount on debentures issued (732) (3,242) -
P 2,294,380 3,116,364 699,849

Long-term borrowings

Ldng-term bank borrowings 892,296 467,378 80,831

Fareign loan 30N 4,074 5,572

Debentures 8,502,852 5,872,258 5,649,690
' Less : Discount on debentures issued (81,696} {58,215) (64917
' Add ; Premium on debentures redemption 21,493 11,138 10,067
1 9,338,016 6,296,633 5,681,243

W 11,632,396 9412997 6,381,092

(b) Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

fallows:
(in mitlions of Won} Annunl Januvary 1,
‘ Bank Issunnce <date  Maturity date  interest rate (%) 2011 2010 2010
‘Mizho 2011.09.23 2012.04.00 128~ 1.2% W 226,558 - -
iB_OA 20011110 2012.05.16 1.54 ~ 1,59 100458 - -
SMBC 2011.09.19 2012.03.19 0.89~ [.47 114,352 - -
{JP Morgan 2011,10.04 2012.06.05 LI3~174 228,996 120,423 -
HSBC 2011.10.21 2012.05.02 [.51~1.92 91,269 224,586 38,590
REUTSCHE 2011.10.10 2012.05.16 1.38 ~ 1.54 142420 111,686 -
‘DBS 2011.09.16 2012.06.13 1.0 ~ 1.73 272,026 . -
‘ANZ 2011.10.21 2012.0L.19 1.51 54,393 223945 138,510
RBS 2011.10.07 2012.01.05 1.23 106,837 41,050 22,163
‘CA and others 106,974 397,381 231,847
‘Qthers (discount on
" accounls receivable) 342,307 220,866 261874
W 1,786,590 1,339,937 698,784
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(c) Current portion of long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and

January 1, 2010 are as follows:

jn(fu wmiltions of Weu) Annual Janvary 1,
Borrowers Issuance dale Maturlty date  interest rale {%) 011 2010 2010

Bomrowings Koren Resowces 20061031 2021.09.15 1.2% W 3000 750 -

' Corporetion

Borrowings Karea Resources 2006.12.28 20211215 1.25 1,510 -

Cotporation

Bormowings Woorl Bank 2000.06.01  2017.03.13 125 1,950 . -

‘Borrowings Woori Bank 2009.10.26  2017.03.15 1.25 650 - .

Bomrowings ‘Woori Dank 2009.12.31 2017.03.15 1.25 411 - .

'"Lioans from forelym NATIXIS (*1) 1984.06.30 2017.12.31 2,00 951 963 1,065

i financial institutions

'Debentutes Domestic debentures 282 2006.03.28  2011.03.28 5.00 299,786 -

'Debentures Domesiic debentures 283 20060510 20110510 500 - 499,669 .

Debontures Domestic dabentures 287  2007,05.11 2012.05.1t 5.26 499,268 - -

Diebentures Ist Samurai Private 2008.12.29 2013,12,29 Tibor(6M)+1.60 - 696029 -

Equity Bonds

‘Debentures Yen dominated FRN 2008.11.11 20111 Tibor(6M)+2,60 - 279230 -

W 507,190 1,776,427 1,065

(*1) As of December 31, 2011, Korea Development Bank has provided guarantees for loans from
foreign financial institutions.

(d) l,ong-term borrowings excluding current portion, as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010
and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

i unitlions of Won} Annual Jeanunry 1,
: Borrowers lssusnce date Matoeity date  Interest rate (%) 1011 1010 2010
Borrowings Woari Bank 20061031~ 2017.03.15~ 1.25-2.25 W 100494 90,598 75519

. and others (*1) 2011.08.11 2039.08.11
bnn‘ow'mga Korea National 071227~ 20221229~  Government bond 10441 8,004 5312
: Ofl Corporation 2011,12.27 2024.12.29 -2.25
Borrowings Korea EXIM Bank 201002.18~ 2017.02.28~ 4,00~4.50 781,361 368,776
‘ 2011.11.29 2018,03.23
Loans from forelgn ~ NATIXIS (*2) 1984.06.30~  2014.12.30~ 2,00 kX7 4074 5572
. lioancinl instiutions 1986.03.31 2017.03,3]
Debeniures Domsstic debentures  2008.08.05~  2013.08.05~ 3.18~6.52 3588982 2492833 2293320
‘ 301 and others 2011.11.28 2021.11.28
Debentures Globul Bond (*3) 2006.06.28~  2013.06.28~ 0~8.75 4,853,667 3232348 3,301,520
‘ and others 20111222 2021.12.22

W 9338016 6,296,613 5,681,243

{*1) Short-term financial instruments amounting to W 1,670 million and W 830 million are
secured in relation to long term borrowings from a forestry association as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.
(*2) As of December 31, 2011, Korea Development Bank has provided guarantees for loans from
| foreign financial institutions.
("’3) The Company redeemed JPY 39,970,000,000 (75.7% of total face value) exchangeable bonds
in August 2011. The Company issued exchangeable bonds with SK Telecom Co., Ltd.
ADRs through Zeus (Cayman)Il Ltd, an SPV. The Company accounted for these
exchangeable bonds as long-term debts undcr K-IFRS. The exchangeable bonds may be
redeemed prior to maturity at 105.11% of their face value for three years from the issuance
date at the option of the bondholders. Also, the Company provides guarantees for Zeus

(Cayman) 1l Ltd.
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15. Other Financial Liabilities

(2) Other short-term financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,

PiOlO are as follows:

hu milfions of Won) January 1,

| 2011 2010 2010
Financial guarantee Habilities W 6336 6,445 .
Accounts paynble 806,913 728,575 987977
Accrued oxponses 248,597 210,040 146,105
Pividends payable 6,050 5,569 5,143
Finance kase lahilities 1,108 1,047 1,023
Withholdings 93% 6405 17,066
Derivative instruments liabilites 19,898 - .
1 W 1,089,208 958,081 1,157,314

{b) Other long-term financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,

2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) January 1,

: 2011 2010 2010
Financial guarantee liabilities W 11,163 9,150 15,210
Long-term accounts payable 86,871 - -
Accrued expenses 19,618 22,287 72436
Derivatives Liabilities 12,771 885 2,133
Finance lease Habilities 1,824 8,835 10,126
Liong-term withholdings 9,052 11,009 852

‘ w 147299 52,166 100,757

16. Provisions

The ?changes in provisions for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

1) For the year ended December 31, 2011

(i.-j! mitllons of Wou} Beginning Increase Decrease Ending
Egtilnated allowance at the end of period (*1) W 9,582 304,869 (310,000) 4451
("*11') Represents the provision for bonuses,
2) Fe?r the year ended December 31, 2010
(h‘r millions of Won) Beginning Increase Decrease Ending
Estimated allowance at the end of period W 5,154 360,114 (355,686) 9,582
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17. Employee Benefits

The Compeny introduced a retirement pension program for all employees in June 2011. The
employces and directors who are in the employment with the Company had an optin to choose
whether they will join the defined contribution plan or the defined benefit pension plan. According
to thr. employee’s choice, the pension plan benefit is based on their accrued length of service,
including their length of service under the previous severance plan.

(a) Defined contribution plans
The Company partially operates a defined contribution plan for participating employees. Though
the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate fund, employee benefits relating to employee
gervice in the future is based on the contributions to the funds and the investment earnings on it.
Plan assets are managed by a trustee as a separate fund from Company’s assets. The expense
related to post-cmployment benefit plans under defined contribution plans during the year ended
December 31, 2011 is W 6,807 million, which is included in profit or loss based on the function

Qf the related employees.

(b) Defined benefit plans
The employees and directors who chose a defined benefit pension plan will receive a defined
payment upon termination of their employment if they fulfill the condition to qualify as a recipient.
Before the termination of employment, the Company recognizes the pension liability related to
defined benefit plans at the end of a reporting period, and measures it at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan assets. The Company uses the projected
unit credit method in the actuarial valuation of plan assets and the defined benefit obligation.

() Thc amounts recognized in relation to defined benefit obligations in the statements of financial
posmon as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(in mitlions of Won)} January 1,

| 2011 2010 2010
Present value of funded obligations W 690,321 1,013,165 815,993
Fair value of plan assets (513,673) {689,162) (599,170)
Met defined benefit obligations W 176,648 324,003 216,823

(d) The changes in present value of defined benefit obligations for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

{in millions of Won} 2011 2010

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of period W 1,013,165 815,993
Current service costs (*1) 108,879 93,206
Interest costs 47,607 44,534
Actuarial losses 6,157 125,100
Benefits paid {485487) {65,668)
Defmed benefit obligation at the end of period W 690,321 1,013,165

(1"'1) This amount includes a gain from a plan settlement in the amount of W 1,887 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011.
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(e) The changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are

as follows:
(in millions of Won)

Plan assets at the beginning of period
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial losses

Contributions of participants

Benefits paid

Plan assets at the end of period

{f) 'I“he fair value of plan assets as of December 31,

2011 2010
W 689,162 599,170
26,886 29,888
(460) (5415)
95,080 100,000
(296.99) (34481)
W 513,673 689,162

2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010,

are as follows:

{in millions of Won) January 1,

‘ 2011 2010 2010
Deposits W 513,607 - -
Equky instruments 10 512,850 446,718
Debt instruments - 176312 152452
Others 56 - -
‘ W 513673 689,162 599,170

(g) The amounts recognized in the statements of comprehensive income for the years ended

December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

{in millions of Won)

burrent service costs
Interest costs
Expected retun on plan assets

The above expenses by function are as follows:

fr‘n niillions of Won)

Cost of sales
Selling and admnistrative expenses
Others

45

2011 2010
W 108,879 93,206
47,607 44,534
(26,886) {29,888)
W 129,600 107,852
2011 2010
W 98,275 17,055
23,853 15,280
7472 15,517
W 129,600 107,852
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(h) jActuarial gains and losses, net of tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the year

‘ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010

Beginning W (101,802) )
Current actuarial losses (6,618) (130,515)
Rffect on change of tax rate 4473 28713
Ending W (103,947) (101,802)

@ T,he principal actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,

?.010 are ag follows:
January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Discount rate 4.32% 521% 521%
Bxpected return on plan assets 3.95% 4.66% 4.66%
Expected future increases in salaries 2.30% 3.00% 3.00%

18. Other Liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as
follows:
{(in millions of Wonj January 1,
B 2011 2010 2010
Other current liabilities
Advances received W 21,149 33,241 25,615
“ Withholding 25,534 24,388 34,009
' Unearned revenue 1,772 4,182 2,012
Deferred revenue - 200 -
: W 48455 62,011 61,636

(b) Other long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are

a5 follows:

(b_t millions of Won} January 1,

‘ 2011 2010 2010

Other Jong-term liabilities

Uneamed revenue W 1,200 1,276 2,308
- Others 3,000 3.000 3,972
| W 4,200 4276 6,277
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19. hnnncial Instruments
(a) Classiﬁcation of financial instruments

1} Financial assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

" follows:
(i millions of Wan) January 1,
. 2011 2010 2010

i Financial assels al faw value through profitor loss W 50,132 182,208 795811

" Available-for-sale financial assets 3,731,559 4911,628 4,397,017

!+ Held-to-maturity investments 29903 31,808 51,675

' Loans and receivables 6,761,074 6,845,356 9,078,061
W 10,572.668 11,991,000 14,322,564

2) Financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

.. follows:
(in mifllans of Won) Janpary 1,
2011 2010 2010
~ Financlal liabiktics at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivatives Kabilities held for trading W 23,669 885 2133
" - Financia! abilities evahsted as amortised cost:
Accounts payable 1,395,846 1310877 739,746
Borrowings 11,632,396 9412997 6,381,002
Fmancial guarantee liabilities (*1) 17499 15,595 15,210
Others I,195420 993,766 1,240,729
14241170 11,733,235 8376,777
W 14,264,839 11,734,120 8378910
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Cﬂl) Financial guarantee contracts recognized in financial guarantee liabilities as of December 31,
2011 are as follows:

{in millions af Won)
Guarantee beneficiary Financlal lnstitution Forelign currency Won cquivalent
POSCO Moharasira Steel Pvt. Ltd, Comerica Bank USD 143,000,000 164,922
United Spiral Pipe, LLC Shinhan Bank UsD 24,500,000 28,256
Export-Import Bank of Korea UsD 200,000,000 230,660
POSCO-Vietnam Co., Lid. MIZUHO Y 2,256,760,000 13,516
SUMITOMO JPY 2,550,000,000 371872
' BXSTEEL POSCO Cold China Construction Bank CNY 159,360,000 29,085
: RolledSheet Co., Ltd. Carporation and others Ush 8,220,000 9480
' Zhangjiagang Poheng Stainless Steel Mizuho and others usD 160,000,000 184,528
. Co., Ltd.
BOA and others usD 135,000,000 155,695
BOC and others CNY 630,000,000 114981
| '~ POSCO Ivestment Co, Ltd. HSBC ard others USD 120,000,000 138396
| HSBC MYR 240,000,000 87,110
| "' POSCO-VST Co., Lud. ANZ and others ush 65,000,000 74,964
POSCO-Mexico S.A. DEC.V HSBC and others usDh 60,000,000 69,198
PQSCO(Guangdong) Coated Steel SMBC and others usD 122,600,000 141,395
Co., Lid.
UsD 1,038,320,000 1,197,494
JPY 4,206,760,000 71,388
CNY 789,360,000 144,066
MYR 240,000,000 87,110
48
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3) Financial income and cost by category of financial instrument for the year ended December 31,
-+ 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

@ December 31, 2011

; I {in millions of IWen} Financial Income and costs
v Other
! Intecest Dividend Calnaodboss  Galn and lost Caln wd compeehensive
on forcign on foreign
income Income loms on Others Total toss
P P currency currency disposs)
transactions translations
' Finsnciel asscts m fair velue w . - - - (3.358) 132 13,226) .
i theough profil orloss
i
; " Avilloblo-for-salo fnancint mscts - 132011 - - 331003 (107.,31M 356,537 (922,331)
| Hold-to-maturity investmonts 1611 . . . . . 1511 .
| Loans nnd receisnbles 102,409 - {14,116) 7953 (545) (1L.799) 93,902 .
"' Finoneial liabiliies st - - - - - {6,735) 5,745)
fair value through profit or loss
\ Finmneial lichiiities are evalunied (420.538) . (95.508) [[73,266) - (17491 (706,3068)
" ns amortlzed copl
M QIsSID __taaeUl ___(0n§3ly (63N 2100 ___(IA3B6) . (364737) _ (912.M3))

- (*1) Financial income and cost in the statement of comprehensive income also includes the
dividends from subsidiaries and associates of W 134,418 million for the year ended

December 31, 2011,
(D, - ® December 31, 2010
fi miflions of Won) Finaneial income and costs
Other
Intorost Divideag ~ OORsMllons  Golnandloss 5o, comprehensive
ok forelge ot foreiga
Inceme incotne losson Others Total neame
{cos1) 1) correitcy urrency disposal
_ ~rnpstions | transtations
"1 Finaoclal asaets at fir value w . . . . 42,110 1,582 a2 .
theough profiy or loss
Avuilable-for-sale financial 2acts RS 61417 - - 692 - 68.99§ 376,986
. Held-to-maurity investments 2042 - . - - - 2042
f Loum and receivablos 203,055 - (29,709} (5421 (618} . 167,307
1 Finanelal liabilities a1 - - . - 1,248 1,248 -
: Thir value through prefit or loss
Financial Tiabilities are crvaluated (317.729) - 33,812 (164,170 - {1,838 (456,932)
a8 amortised cost
O W (117480 67417 1103 {173,598 4,184 1292 {173,348 376,986

- (*1) Financial profit in the statement of comprehensive income includes the dividends from
¥ subsidiaries and associates of W 66,184 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,

-
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() dmdit risk

d Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit
rigk. The maximum exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and
Ja?nuary 1, 2010 is as follows:

("f millions of Wan) Janvary 1,

¥ 2011 2010 2010

Cish and cash equivalents W 1,137,382 672426 626,782
Financial assets at fair value through proft or loss 50,132 182,208 795,811
Aba ilable-for-sale fnancial assets 3,731,559 4931,628 4,397,017
Hbki-to-maturity investments 29,903 31,808 51,675
Lgans and other receivables 1,402,927 2,624,458 5,498,190
Trade accounts and notes receivable 4.220,241 3,548,443 2,951,783
Long-term trade accounts and notes receivable 24 24 1,306
; W 10.572.668 11,991,000 14,322 364

I‘he Company provided financial guarantee for the repayment of loans of subsidiaries and

aisociatcs. As of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, the maximum
e posure to credit risk are amounted to W 1,500,058 million, W 1,857,538 million and (
W 1,680,693 million respectively. .
2} Impairment losses on financial assets

ol
X @ Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January

i 1,2010 is as follows:

i
Y (in millions of Won) January 1,

! 2011 2010 2010
f ' Accounts receivable w 2,174 4915 11,821

Other accounts receivable 10,571 10,591 10,620

‘ | Long-term loans 14,453 14,487 14470
-1 Other assets 13 20 672
L W 2721t 30,013 37,583

: @ Reversal of impairment losses on financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
1 2010 are as follows:

‘ i (in mitlions of Won} 2011 2010

N

i Reversal of bad debt expenses W (2,753) {6,626)

+, Reversal of other bad debt expenses (51} (665)

j ; W {2.804) (3291) {
I
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(7 |
| I@ The aging schedule and the impaired losses of trade accounts and notes receivable as of
December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January I, 2010 are as follows:

I

]

| (i miltions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2040

i Trade accounts and . Trade accounts and ; Trade accouts .

! notes receivable wpa notes receivable mpa and notes Tmparment

|

| Not due W 1,890,405 - 31,416,549 2,727 2,739,546 3,235
1 Overdue ks than | month 210,630 . 53,385 37 69,678 49
i 1 month - 3 months 69,962 - 37,554 26 9,881 7
i : 3 months - 12 months 40,521 - 37,978 27 26,077 18
‘ : over 12 monihs 10,921 2,174 7.921 2,098 119,728 8,512

! W 4222,439 2I 174 3,553.387 4915 2,964,9 10 11821

|

i

’@ Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2011 and

i 2010 were as follows:

I {in millions of Won} 2011 2010

| ; Beginning W 30013 37,583

‘ | Reversal of bad debt expenses {2,804) (7,2910)
i Other decrenses 2 (279)
i Ending W 27211 30,013

(: © ﬂfquidity risk

gt

!
Cont;:\:tual maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities, including estimated interest, are as

follp
Cush Dowfbr  notinter than 3 month § month 1 yeue Inter than
ﬂ"|""m°m of Hon) Book valuo contrach 3 month - § months - 1 yoar -3 i'em'l 5 yenes
Nojr derivative financlal Babiiies
: Trade nccounls payable W L0585 1,305 846 1,308 844 - - . -
} Borrowings (*1} 1163239 13,350458 1314591 119339} w40 8,162,778 2460219
! Financial guarantes fabiliies 17409 1,500,038 1500058 - . - .
her financia] Gabilkics 1,195429 1,195420 1061561 an 10231 120.516 2849

o, _zagol, 327006 LIoAses 2570, __33R4M. 24706
dl Includes cash flows of embedded derivatives instruments in relation to exchangeable bonds
.| {exchange right).
Q"‘Z) For issued financial gurantee contracts, the maximum amount of the gurantee is allocated to
| the earliest period in which the gurantee could be called.
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() C;hrrency risk

l)| The Company has exposure to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
| instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The exposure to currency
i i risk as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010  is as follows:

.

i (Tn millions of Won) 2011 2010 January I, 2010
; Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilitics Assets Linbiliics
. BUR W B 11,449 19335 11,900 29249 12,571
lusp 888,396 5842319 $38,688 4266232 964,986 2481972
| IPY 83,627 2,129,999 56377 2444452 44,339 2211,387
| Others 1363 18,590 20 2582 235 2,582

W 997676 8002357 014630 675166 1039300 4708512

strengthening or weakening of functional currency against foreign currencies other than

;jz) For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the effects of a hypothetical 10%
| functional currency on profit before tax were as follows:

|
|
|
|
|
| (in millions of Won) 2011 2010
|
|
i

| 10% increase  10% decrease 10% increase  10% decrease
1 EUR W 1,234 (1,234) 744 (744)
.1 USD (495,342) 495,342 {342,754) 342,754
JPY (204,637) 204,637 {238,808) 238,308
{e) ﬂtereat rate risk
H

L)\The book value of interest-bearing financial instruments as of December 31, 2011, December 31,
112010 and January 1, 2010 is as follows:

ol
| (in miltions of Won)} 2011 2010 January 1, 2010

! | Fixed rate

|  Financial assets W 2,286,554 3,312,165 6,015,564

: Fmancial habilities (11,525827) (8,347.135) {5426,485)
i (9,239273) (5,034,970) 1,489,079

| Variable rate
i Financial liabilities W (106,569) (1,065,862) (954,607)
Z)! Sensitivity analysis on the fair value of financial instruments with fixed interest rate
|

The Company does not account for derivative instruments such as interest swaps as hedges in fair
alue hedging accounting. Therefore, fluctuations in interest rates do not affect gain or loss.
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3) Sensitivity analysis on the fair value of financial instruments with variable interest rate
Al of December 31, 2011 and 2010, provided that other factors remain the same and the interest
rate of borrowings with floating rates increases or decreases by 1%, the changes in interest expense
during year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
(in millions of Won) 2011 2010
N 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Vpriable rate (1,066) 1,066 (10,659) 10,659
! financial instruments
N
® Fl*u‘ value
1Y Fair value and book value
|
he carrying amount and the fair value of financial instruments as of December 31, 2011,
December 31, 2010 and Yanuary 1, 2010 are as follows :
§
{in imﬂh‘om of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
¥ Book Vahe Fair Value Bock Vals  Faor Vas  Book Vahs  Far Vahe
M' 18 measured al fair value
- Finaocial assets held for trading W 50,122 50,132 182,208 152208 795811 795811
Q ! vailblo-for-saks financial assets 3530357 3630357 4799,107 4799107 4250843 4250843
| —d0004E8 3680489 _495)3]5 8IS IOd665 3046634
s3cls nensured amoniced cot
' Cash and cash cquivakenis 1,137,882 1,137,882 672426 672426 626,782 626,782
Cutrent tracks accounts and 4220265 4220265 3548472 3548472 2,953,089 2,553,089
nf)!e receivable
' luoans and othor receivables 1402527 1,402,927 2,624,458 2,624,458 5.498,190 5,498,150
| I‘-lcld-lo-mmrity investimeats 29903 29.903 31,308 31,808 51675 51675
$.790977 6790977 §377.164 6377064 9129736 9,129.736
thililies measwed T vake
| Derivatives labilities held for trading 23,669 23,669 885 385 2133 2,133
Linbiliies measured amortised cost
. Trade accounts payable 1,395,846 1,395,346 1310877 1,310877 739,146 739,746
| Borrowiigs 11,632,396 12,048,152 9412997 9,884,031 6,381,092 6,705,438
Bioancial grarantce babditics 17499 17,499 15,595 15,595 15210 15210
{Others 1193429 1,193,429 993,766 993766 1240729 1240.729

| W 14241170 J4656.926 __Ll733335 __ 12204200 8376777 8701923
i
|

2) |Interest rate for determining fair value

|
Imierest rates to discount the estimated cash flows as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010
antl January 1, 2010 are as follows:

| 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
Bojlrrowmgs 1.80% ~4.62% 1.19% ~5.14%  1.28% ~ 5.38%

a
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3) The fair value hierarchy

: @ The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
' significance of the inputs used in measurements.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs, other than quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(that is, unobservable inputs).

@ The fair value measurements classified by fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2011,

December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

a. December 31, 2011

fin millions of Won) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets held for trading - 50,132 . 50,132
Available-for-ssle financial assets 2774838 - 855,519 3,630,357
2,774 838 50,132 855,519 3,680,489
Financial Liabilitics
Derivatives liabilities held for trading - 23,669 - 23,669
b. December 31, 2010
{in mitlions of Won) Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Finencial essets held for trading - 182,208 - 182,208
Available-for-sale fnancial assets 4,195 360 - 603,747 4,799,107
4,195,360 182,208 603,747 4981315
Financial Liabilitics
Derivatives liabilities held for trading - 885 - 885
¢. January 1, 2010
(in milltons of Won) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Fimancial assets held for trading - 795811 - 795,811
Available-for-sale finencia) assets 3,650,351 - 600,492 4,250 843
1,65035] 795811 600452 5,046,654
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives liabilities held for trading - 2,133 - 2,18
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2010 are as follows:

1 t?D Changes in financial assets classified as level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
¥
|

tin millions of Won) 2011 2010
i Begiming W 603,747 600,492
1 Change to kevel 3 (*1) 98,242 -
| Other comprehensive income 153,530 3,255
' Ending ¥ 855,519 603,747

. (*1) Financial assets classified as level 3 from current year.

:
20. Share Capital and Capital Surplus
(a) S]!Lare capital

Under the Articles of Incorporation, the Company is authorized to issue 200 million shares of
comp'lon stock with par value of W 5,000 per share. As of December 31, 2011, exclusive of retired
stock, 87,186,835 shares of common stock have been issued.

The. Company is authorized, with the Board of Directors® approval, to retire treasury stock in
accordance with applicable laws up to the maximum amount of certain undistributed earmings.
9,29;1,790 shares of common stock were retired with the Board of Directors’ approval.

As oﬁ December 31, 2011, total shares of ADRs are 52,974,264 equivalents to 13,243,566 of common
stock!

As df December 31, 2011, ending balance of common stock amounts to W 482,403 million; however,
it is different from par value of issued common stock, which amounted to W 435,934 million, due to
retirement of treasury stock,

(b) C%pital surplus

Capital surplus as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(inl millions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
Shillre premiutm W 463,325 463,825 463,825
Galns on disposal of treasury shares 763,867 694,714 694,714
: W 1,227,692 1,158,539 1,158,539
|
‘I
|
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21, qesewes
{a) SR:bserves as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
(irip millions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
Abcumulated ohanges in foir vae
: iof available-for-sale securities, net of tax W 156,707 1,079,038 702,052

() ﬁ?he changes in fair value of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2011
ahd 2010 are as follows:
o

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010
|
Beginning balance WoO1079038 W 702052
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale securities (769,627) 483315
Réclassiﬁnatian to profit or loss upon disposal (331977 -
irment of available-for-sale investments (75,480} -
dx effects 254,752 {106,329)

Eiding balance W 156707 W 1079038

. (.

22. ’#‘reasury Shares

In .[4nuary 2011, the Company sold 342,955 shares of treasury stock for W 164,384 million and
recognized W 69,153 million, net of tax, as a gain on sale of treasury stock in capital surplus.  Also,
the | fompany acquired 131,389 shares of treasury stock for W 61,296 million,

o
As '¢f December 31, 2011, the Company holds 9,942,391 shares of treasury stock for price
stal#ilﬂization in accordance with the Board of Director’s resolution.
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23. lietained Earnings
i

®

summarized as follows:

|
() Retained earnings as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are

(in nitlions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
Legal reserve W 241,202 241,202 241202
Reserve for business rationalization 918,300 218,300 918,300
Reserve for research and manpower development 1,333,333 1,128,333 720,000
Appropristed refained earnings for business expansion 26,507,500 23,557,500 21,557,500
Appropriated ratained earnings for dividends 1,626,993 1,305,805 1,211,224
Unappropriated retained samings 7493292 8465548 8,069,289

W 38,122,620 35,706,778 32.7[71'5_1_5_

Statements of appropriation of retained earnings as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as

follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010
Retained earnings before appropriation
Unappropriated retained earnings carried over from prior year W 4,501,703 4975571
Actuarial losses (2,145) {101,802)
Interim dividends (193,111) (192,582)
Dividends (ratio) per share
W 2,500 (50%) in 2011
W2,500 (50%) in 2010
Profit for the year 3,188,845 3,784,361
7,495,292 8,465,548
Transfer from discretionary reserve
Reserve for research and manpower resource deviopment 133,333 195,000
Appropriation of retained earnings
Cash dividends
Dividends (ratio) per share 579,333 577,747
W 7,500 (150%) in 2011
W 7,500 (150%) i 2010
Reserve for research and manpower development 330,000 400,000
Appropriated retained earnings for business expansion 6,203,000 2,950,000
Appropriated ratained earnings for dividends 231,733 231,098
7,344,066 4,158,845
Unappropriated retained earnings carrled
. forward to subsequent year W 284,559 4,501,703

~* The date of appropriation for 2011 is March 16, 2012 and the date of appropriation for 2010
' was February, 25, 2011.
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24, $tock Appreciation Rights

(a) Ti'le Company granted stock appreciation rights to its executive officers in accordance with the
$q;ck appreciation rights plan approved by the Board of Directors. The details of the stock

appreciation rights granted are as follows:

Cq:aer share, won)

: 6th Grant

Granted 90,000
Exercised 64,000
’qnexercised 26,000
Exemlse price W 194,900
E,xerclse period 2007.4.29 ~ 2012.4.28

) Ep&pcnses related to stock appreciation rights granted to executives incurred for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 4th Grant 5th Grant 6th Grant Total

fAccmm:lnted reversal of stock compensation W (83) (9.681) {3,463) (13227

| as of December 31, 2010 .
Reversal of stock compensation expenses . (1,530) (2,693) {4,223) -

5 for the year ended December 31, 2011

(c) The Company uses a fair value approach for calculating remuneration cost. The method and
assumpuon for computing fair value of stock appreciation rights are as follows:

6th Grant

Risk-free rate of interest 3.43%
xpected life 104 days
Expected price-volatility 16.59%
Rate of expected dividends 2.63%
Stock price 380,000
Fhir value W 184,157
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|
Details of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
(iﬁ millions of Won) 2011 2010
Rievenues
| Goods W 39,083,842 32,500,258
| Others 87,861 81,7719
N W 39,171,703 32,582,037
26. $iblling and Administrative Expenses
L
(a) Ahministmtive expenses
A{dministrativc expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
(bé millions of Won) 2011 2010
Whges and salaries W 159,201 148,969
E:&penses related to defined benefit plan 26,254 15,905
Other employee benefits 67211 55255
'l?r*avel 20,349 20,795
Dgpreciation 22,571 17,464
ﬁ.t’;nortization 16,050 15,571
an!nl 37,513 26,844
quahs 17,988 13,051
chvert'sing 94,958 84,720
Rie?search & development 146,745 94,241
Sgpzice fees 163,596 157,804
Supphes 5,598 7445
Vihicles maintenance 7220 6,320
In fustry association fee 6,778 7,563
Triining 20,301 21,744
Canference 6,569 7,010
Reverse of bad debt expenses (2,753) (6,626)
Others 30,183 28,351
: W 846332 722,426
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(b) ‘Sélling expenses

$d:=lling expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010

Fi'cight and custody expenses W 826,147 702,391
Olperating expenses for distribution center 7,804 8,686
Sales commissions 63,463 49,635
Sales advertising 920 1,546
$ales promotion 5,148 7,792
Sample 2,611 1,776
Sales msurance premiwn 11,089 11,970
! W 917,182 783,796

27. Researeh and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses recognized as expense for the years ended December 31, 2011

and 2010 are as follows:

w(Fn millions of Won) 2011 2010

Selling and administrative expenses W 146,745 94241
Cost of sales 362,765 381,802
i W 509,510 476,043

28. 6ther Operating Income and Expenses

(a) qmer operating income

Dfptai]s of other operating income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010

Ghin on disposal of property, plant and equipment W 10,840 21,611
G#h on disposal of intangible assets 38 -
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates 719 -
Gﬁﬁi on disposal of other long-term assets - 283

Miscellancous income 34,043 60,105
% i W 45,640 81,999
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(b) cher operating expenses

i
Dletails of other operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
fallows:

(in mitlions of Won) 2011 2010

Lbss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment W 60,174 111,689
I.?ss on disposal of intangible assets 320 25
Irhpairment of property, plant, and equipment 24816 -
vaersal of other bad debt expenses (51) (665)
Donatnons 50,787 59,647
E*penses on assets not in use 16,568 -
Miscellancous loss 27,379 30,909
- W 179,993 201,605

29. Expenses by nature
|

.
Expjphses that are recorded by nature as cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses and other
Opetﬁting expenses in the statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as

follops:

(irir millions of Won} 2011 2010
(Dlhanges in inventories (*1) W (753,344) (952,794)
R.a\w materials and consumables used 27,336,030 20,201,672
Hl’pployee benefits expenses 1,226,922 1,165,277
Oh!sonrced processing cost 1,943,507 1,694,715
Dépnecmtlon (*2) 1,738,466 2,563,332
A@mmnm 34,757 36,046
Ofdinary research & development expenses 509,510 476,043
Electricity and water expenses 602,806 462918
Service fees 231,404 223,982
Advertising expenses 04,958 84,720
Frpight and custody expenses 826,147 702,391
Cqmmission paid 63463 49,635
Lass on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 60,174 111,689
Other expenses 1,107,015 1,059,891
: W 35,021,315 27879517

("‘ ) Changes in inventories are the changes in product, semi-finished products and by-product.
(* ) Includes depreciation of investment property.
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30, Fﬁnance Income and Costs
i

Detéihs of finance income and costs for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
]

{aln millions of Won)

f‘inancial income
Irfterest income
D{ividend mcome
GJPms on disposal of financinl assets hel for trading
Ghins on derivative transactions
Glpins on foreign currency transactions
ins on foreign currency transkations
Gpins on disposal of available-for-sale securities

p!:hers
&

F#mncial costs

Iriterest expenses

L%)sses on foreign currency trensactions
Lpsses on foreign currency tanslations
Impairment of available-for-sale securitics
Okthers

]

62

2011 2010
W 104,020 205983
267,329 133,602
2,030 15,373
69 26,737
495251 485,694
35,456 88,335
331,919 1,222
4285 3,130
1,240,359 960,076
420,538 317,729
604,372 484,592
200,769 261,933
107377 -
37,112 2,986
W 1,370,668 1,067,240
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31. ﬁii:come Taxes
(a) fﬂhe Company was subject to income taxes on taxable income at the following normal tax rates.
Taxable income 2010 2011 Thereafter
Up to W 200 million 11.00% 11.00% 11.00%
‘@ver W 200 million up to ¥ 20 billion 24.20% 24.20% 22.00%
Over W 20 billion 24.20% 24.20% 24.20%

I:n. December 2011, the Korean govemment changed the corporate income tax rate (including
resident tax) for taxable income exceeding W 20 billion from 22.0% to 24.2% prospectively
frbm 2012.

®) IQcome tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(m millions of Won) 2011 2010

C].lrrent income taxes W 525,374 874,405
Deferred income taxes 114,353 96,204
‘ 'Less Items credited (charged) directly to shareholders' equity 237,148 (77.616)
Iﬂcome tax expense W 876,875 £92.993

(c) Tﬂhe expected amount of income tax expense based on statutory rates compared to the actual
amount of taxes recorded by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are
a‘f follows:

(in millions of Won) 2011 2010
P{roﬁt before income tax expense W 4,065,720 4,677,354
I¢come tax expense computed at statutory rate 983,878 1,131,920
Adjustments: (107,003) (238.927)
| Tax credit (174057) (256,138)
| Additional payment of income taxes 1,088 33417
| Effect of tax rate change 53,459 -
| Others 12,507 {16,206)
Ixjcome tax expense W 876,875 802993
Effective rate (%) 21.6% 19.1%
Hl
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{d) Tge income taxes (charged) credited directly to equity for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2

10 are as follows:
(r|Lz millions of Won) 2011 2010
Net changes in fair value of available-for-sale securities W 254,753 {106,329)
]jlefmed benefit plan actuarial losses 4473 28,713
;dain on disposal of treasury shares (22,078) -
g W 237,148 (77,616)

|
O

() The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
a*e as follows:

r'idl ritlions of Won) mi 2010
: | Dec.31, 2010 Ine(Dec) Dec31, 2011 Dec3l, 2009 Ine{Dec)  Dec.31, 2010
Déferred income tax due to
: lemporary differences
Reserve for specinl repais W (27,776) (1,883) {29,659) (39,500) 11,724 (27,776)
daserve for technology {264,000) (94,160) (358,160) (176,000) {88.000) (264,000)
 fevelopinents
[bqipwchﬁun expensc (65,129) 1,901 (63,228) {78.445) 13316 (65,129)
Prbpaid expenscs 18,851 3,028 21,87 17,757 1,004 18,851
Reappraisal of (345,058) (208,147) (553,208) (411,760) 86,702 (345,058)
! property, plant and equipment
l.‘rcisa on foroign currency 81,066 12,845 93,911 39,783 41,283 81,066
! traslation
Defiued benefk liability 130,271 (27,533) 102,738 124,158 6,113 130,271
l? m assets {151,406) 26,870 {124,5316) (117,198) {34,208) (151,406)

I rued revernus (6,600) 4,286 (2,314) (11,957} 5357 {6,600)
grm 332,126 (48,246) 283,880 327,065 5,061 332,126
‘ | (297,655) (331,039) (628,695) (326,097) 28,442 (297.655)
D&fcmd tax from tax credit
’Tﬂ,x credi carryforward 239,526 (42,540) 196,986 286,556 (47,030) 239,526
g 239,526 (42,540) 196,986 286,556 47,030) 239,526
Ii) I ferred income faxes
' recognized directly to equity
QI; (inss) on vahuation of (285,750) 254,753 (50,030) (198,454)  (106,329)  (304,783)
; dvaibble-for-snle securities
Defined benot plan 28,713 4473 33,186 - 28,713 28,713
; *c.lunriul losses
¥ (257,037 259,226 (16,844) (179.421) (77,616) (276,070}
‘ ; W (334,199 (114,353) (448,552) (237,993) (96,204) {334,199

|
.
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are as follows:

& witltons af 1¥on)

|

lie*emd Income: tax due 16

wdmporary differonces

Riserve o specialiopais
Eerve for teclmology
{developmeans

l'.Hmchlbn oxpense

Ppbnﬁ experses

Redpproiel of

Ploperty, plt and equipment

Loss on @mign cumrency
tion
Diefined bene i by

Phoj assets
Oliyny

i
Drferved tax from tux eredit
Tax|eredi camyforward

Dpderred income taxes
recegnind direcily to vquity
G (foss) on vakition of

Ibeferred tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010

2011 000 January 1. 2030
Asycls Linbillities Net Assels Lialdlities Net Asget Liabilitiex Met
W 29,649 (29,659 - .76 (22.776) - 39,500 (39,500}
358,160 (358,160) 364000 (264,000 - 176,000  (176000)
15,661 75,889 (63,228 16,664 81,793 {65,129) 18,815 97,260 (78.445)
21870 - 21,879 18851 - 18,851 17,757 . 17757
553,208 {553,205) - 058 (J45058) - 41260 @ELTE0
173176 79,865 93911 182981 0Les 81,066 125,69 21913 19,783
102,738 . 102,738 130271 - 130271 124,158 - 124,138
. 124,536 {124,836) . 151406 (151,408) UTI%%  (117,198)
. 2314 234) - 6,600 {6,600) . 11,957 {16,937
583,540 200,660 283,380 875,768 543,642 332,126 778,31t 48246 327,065
B97.504 1526288 (B28604)  1,04535 1,525,090  (297,058) (061,737 138784 (326,007
196,986 . 196,986 230,526 . 21083 286,556 - 286,556
196,986 - 196,986 219,526 PR T 7T 286,556 . 186,556
- 50,030 (30,030) - 04783 (304,783) 50083 248,537 (198,454)
33,186 - 33,186 28,13 - 28,713 . -
33,136 50,030 (16824) 28,713 304,783 (276010) 50,083 248537  [193454)
WOLI27766 1876318 (443.552) 1492778 1826973 (334199} 1398316 1636371 (237995

|
Pt of December 31, 2011, the Company did not recognize income tax effects associated with
taxable temporary differences of W 1,209,618 million (deferred tax liability W 173,981 million)
relating to the valuation of equity method investments occurred in prior periods since the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
th}at the termporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
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32. 4arnings Per Share

BasiA'; and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(il(a millions of Won

3 #xce_pt per share information) 2011 2010

Ptofit for the period W 3,188,845 3,784,361
Weighted-average number of
' lcommon shares outstanding (*) 77,251,818 77,032,878

sic and diluted earnings per share 41,279 49,127

(") The weighted-average number of common shares used to calculate basic and diluted earnings
per share are as follows:

2011 2010
v Total number of common shares issued 87,186,835 87,186,835
Weighted-average number of treasury stock (9,935,017) (10,153,957
| Weighted-average number of
commen stock outstanding 77251818 77032878
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33. dperating Profit
(a) Operating profit adjusted by previous GAAP for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are
h{s follows:
|
(lq': millions of Won) 2011 2010
Operating profits by K-IFRS W 4,196,028 4,784,518
Deducted
|Gaing on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 10,840 21,611
j Gains on disposal of other long-term assets - 283
. |Gains on disposal of imtangible essets 38 -
QGains on disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates 719 -
. |Miscelaneous income 34,043 60,105
1 45,640 819%
Afded
' [Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 60,174 111,689
Loss on disposal of other fong-term assets - 5
. iLoss on disposal of intangible assets 320 25
| iImpairment of property, plant, and equipment 24,816 -
* IReversal of other bad debt expenses (51) (665)
_ |Donations 50,787 59,647
Expenses on asset not in use 16,568 .
.. Miscellaneous logses 2131 30,904
( ; ‘ 179993 201,505
Operating profits by previous GAAP W 4330381 4,904,124
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34,

elated Party Transactions

as follows:

@

-
(in miftions of Won)
i

S!ubsldlarles

POSCO E&C Co., Ltd,

POSCO Processing & Service Co., Lid,
POSCO Coated & Color Steel Co., Ltd.
POSCO ICT Co., Ltd.

P)OSCO Chemtech Company Ltd,
POSCO TMC Co,, Ltd

POSCO AST Co., Ltd.

aewoo International Corp.
POSCO NST Co., Ltd.
POSCO America Corparation
£ SCO Canada Ltd.

SCO Asia Co., Ltd.
POSCO-Japan Co., Ltd,
POSCO-IPPC Pwvt. Lid.
PIOSCO-Mexico Co., Ltd.

gaewoo International Singapore Pte, Ltd,

Qthers

:!
g
Assoclates

C Co., Ltd.
LJ$S-POSCO Industries
Poschrome( Proprietary) Ltd.

Qthers

{*1) Sales and others include sales and other operating income.
products and these are priced on an arm’s length basis.

(*2) Purchase and others include purchase and overhead cost.
related to purchase of construction services and purchase of raw materials to manufacture steel
These are priced on an arm’s length basis.
(*3) As of December 31, 2011, the Company provided guarantees to related parties {note 19).

products,

Sales and others (*1)

ignificant transactions with related companies for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Purchases and others (*1)

2011 2010 2011 2010
W 26,536 7441 W 1,687,665 2,292,524
1,181,088 1,082,903 1,406,245 478,030
593,656 685,698 1,890 3,178
1,537 1,212 507,883 485,525
423,643 142,677 755,515 573,973
168,314 151,323 gs4 91
319,258 267,323 58475 57,180
3,896,857 867,916 5,599 3,799
186,809 9,256 4,734 -
353,904 233,59 1 -
- - 289,047 170,842
2,029,181 1,377,802 178,395 148,706
1,628,069 1,161,919 34,860 272,282
148,343 164,628 - -
347915 273241 176 -
- - 149,029 12447
927,595 1,432,296 1,198,091 750,526
W 12,233,305 7859229 W 6278489 5249,103
4,787 1,763 447,130 51981
342,594 308,998 29 264
- - 72,502 80,282
213,232 31,528 59444 303,446
W 560,613 342289 W 579,105 903,863
W 12793918 8,201,5i8 W 6,857,594 6,152,966

68
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I 7,

(i niithions of Wen)

Subsldiarics
PESCO E&C Co., Lud.
P
Co., Ltd.
POSCO Plantec Co., Ltd.
POSCO ICT Co., Lid.
POSCO Coated & Color Steel
‘Co., Lid.
POSCO Chemtech Company

SCO Processing & Service

SCO TMC Co., Ltd.

SCO AST Co., Lid.
Daewoo International Corp.
POSCO NST Co., Lid.
POSCO America Corporation
POSCO Asia Co., Lid.
POSCO-TBPC Co., Lud.
Qngduo Pohang Stainless Stecl
Co,, Lid.

POSCO-Vietnam Co., Lid.
BOSCO-Japan Co., Lid.
POSCO-IPPC Pwi. Lud.
POSCO-Mezico Co., Lid.
Ql 1ers

i
A#sociltes
Pgsmate Co., Lid.
3NNC Co., Ltd.
UT;—POSOO Industries
0

rs

Receivables (*1)

Payables (*1)

ignificant transactions with related companies the related account balances as of December 31,
011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows;

January, 1 Janvary, 1
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010

w 647 293 480 W 241918 190,081 437819

38838 1294133 114,783 1,512 6842 2,656

65 9 42534 48058 22839

30 - i 62,583 63,627 54,520

116252 104,755 109,616 338 437 199

37,808 33,743 6,880 52,048 62,669 66,008

21,601 11,823 11,678 124 15 24

33266 19,065 17492 7,090 8255 1572

284,125 139,756 . 1,589 - -

64,012 . . 676 - .

32,346 12211 6,163 . . -

27476 122,626 40,548 1407 3,767 1170

27,381 25919 18,376 - . .

6,713 13,805 24404 . - -

422 683 95,781 - - .

52,362 28,515 25972 1,546 4,958 6,701

3484 10412 12,356 - - .

171,908 80,443 16247 - . .

81255 15,167 26073 83201 32209 17,840

W 1,24999] 748,349 526859 W 526573 420918 617,397

W - 1,396 a8 W 7,108 6391 5222

223 182 1,974 23,187 57,512 26963

- 58,347 39,100 . - .

21,160 7231 176 809 29.714 78

i W 21383 67,156 41298 W 31,194 93617 32263

i W 1271374 815,505 568157 W 357767 514,535 649660
|

(1) Receivables include trade accounts and notss receivable and other receivables. Payables

69

‘ i include trade accounts payable and other payables.



q0

(c) For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, details of compensation to key management

: officers are as follows:
 (in millions of Won) 2011 2010
. Bhort-term benefits W 29371 16,346
ther long-term benefits 21,905 21415
tirement benefis 7428 5,696
W 58,704 43457

Key management officers include directors (including non-standing directors), executive
fhcials and fellow officials who have significant influence and responsibilities in the
' Company’s business and operations. The Company recognized expense related to stock
ppreciation rights(note 24) which were decreased by W 4,223 million and W 13,227 million
- for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
35, Qommitments and Contingencies
(a) The Company entered into long-term contracts to purchase iron ore, coal, nickel and others.
EEllese contracts generally have terms of more than three years and provide for periodic price
ljustments to the market price. As of December 31, 2011, 261 million tons of iron ore and 38
million tons of coal remained to be purchased under such long-term contracts.
|
(b) The Company entered into an agreement with Tangguh Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) Consortium
in Indonesia regarding the commitment to purchase 550 thousand tons of LNG annually for 20
ars commencing in August 2005. Purchase price is subject to change, following the change of
e monthly standard oil price (JCC) and also price ceiling is applicable.

(c) As of December 31, 2011, POSCO entered into commitments with Korea National Oil
Corporation for long-term foreign currency borrowings, which are limited up to the amount of
SD 6.86 million, USD 3.54 million and USD 4.12 million, respectively. The borrowings are
related to the exploration of gas hydrates in Aral Sea, Uzbekistan, the exploration of gas hydrates
in Namangan-Chust and the exploration of gas hydrates in Chinabad, west-Fergana,, respectively.
The repayment of borrowings depends on the success of the projects. POSCO is not liable for the
repayment of full or part of the money borrowed if the respective project fails. POSCO has agreed
10 pay a certain portion of its profits under certain conditions, as defined by borrowing agreements.

(d) Lﬁtigation in progress
|
The Company is involved in 12 lawsuits and claims for alleged damages aggregating to W 8,806
nillion as of December 31, 2011 which arose in the ordinary course of business. The Company
izl unable to predict the possible outcome of the above claims. However, in the opinion of
management, the foregoing lawsuits and claims will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position, operating results or cash flows. No provision is recorded in
nnection with the above lawsuits and claims as of December 31, 2011.
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(¢) Als of December 31, 2011, the Company has provided three blank promissory notes and one blank

36. ql'ash Flows from Operating Activities

check to Korea Resources Corporation as collateral for long-term domestic borrowings, and has
provided six blank promissory notes and three blank checks to Korea National Qil Corporation as
collateral for long-term foreign currency borrowings.

|
(a) Adjustments for operating cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as

follows:
O

|
{{n millions of Won)

Accrual of severance benefits
Depreciation

Depreciation of investment properties
Amortization

eversal of bad debt expenses
inance costs

Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment
I

come taX expense

Finance income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Ippairment of financial assets available for sales

Others
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2011 2010

129,600 107,852
1,735316 2,561227
3,150 2,105
34,757 36,046
(2,804 (7291)
656,600 580,811
60,174 111,689
876875 £92,993
(743797 (459,009)
(10,840) (21,611)
107,377 -
35,758 (9,812)
2,882,166 3,795,000
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gg

follows:

(it:l millions of Won)
|

Financial assets hekt for rading
de accounts and notes receivable
Cther accounts receivable

dvance payments
aid expenses
Inventories

g-term guarantee deposits
Trade accounts payable

Dividends Payable

(ther accounsts payable

Accroed expenses
Advances received
Withholdings

Uneamned revenue

Other long-term liabilities
Derivatives liabilities held for trading
ayment severance benefits

lan assets
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(b) Changes in operating assets and liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as

2011 2010
W 132,208 325,485
(663,827) {690,248)
(156,186) (37,140)
15 5,726
(3,793) (5,183)
(1,146,630) (3,002,813)
339 (444)
86,164 571,969
482 425
74,146 (259,137)
10445 20,668
(12,093) 7,627
1,147 (16,692)
(2:486) 1,089
(5617) 4,653
10,898 .
(485487) (65,668)
201,914 (89,.992)
W (1958361) (3229675)
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As of December 31, 2011

37. 'Lunsiﬁon to K-IFRS

As stated in note 2, the financial statements are the separate financial statements prepared in
accordance with K-IFRS No. 1101 First-time Adoption of Korean International Financial Reporting

Stan

The

for ]
infon
posit

Inpf

ards’,

significant accounting policies stated in note 3 were applied to the separate financial statements
he year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the separate financial statements as comparative
mation for the year ended on December 31, 2010 and the separate statements of financial
jion as of January I, 2010 (the date of transition),

eparing its opening K-IFRS statement of financial position, the Company has adjusted amounts

repotted previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with K-GAAP (previous GAAP).
An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to K-IFRS has affected the Company’s
financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and the notes

that

(a) I
A

T
11

L

3)

D

5)

ccompany the tables.

Exemptions elected from K-IFRS No. 1101 ‘First-time Adoption of Korean International
financial Reporting Standards' by the Company

he Company has elected to use one or more of the exemptions in accordance with K-IFRS No.
01 for the preparation of statements of financial position at the date of transition and applied the

fallowing optional exemptions.
1) Business combination

- | The Company has not retrospectively applied the business combinations that took place prior to

the date of transition to K-IFRS.
} Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment

The Company has elected to use the revaluations prior to the date of transition to K-IFRS as

- |deemed cost for certain items of property, plant and equipment and used the fair value at the
| date of transition as deemed cost for certain machinery and equipment,

Borrowing costs

' The Company has capitalized borrowing costs fo the qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalization is on or after the transition date to K-IFRS.
|

Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The Company has elected to use the carrying values of previous GAAP as deemed costs for the
investment in subsidiaries and associates.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company has not retrospectively applied K-IFRS accounting requirements to cash-settled

| share-based payment transactions that took place prior to the date of transition to K-IFRS.
|
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6) Leases

.| For arrangements existing at the date of transition to K-IFRS, the Company determined whether
| the arrangements were lease arrangements based on the facts and circumstances at the date of
transition.

(b) The significant adjustments regarding transition to K-IFRS are as follows:

] Defined benefit liabilities

c g—

" Under previous GAAP, the Company recognized the amount of accrued severance benefits
.| assuming all eligible employees and directors with at least one year of service were to terminate
| their employment as of the date of the statement of financial position. Under K-IFRS, the
| Company recognized the defined benefit obligations based on actuarial assumptions.

2) Derecognition of financial assets

Under previous GAAP, the Company derecognized financial assets such as trade accounts and
notes receivable when transferred to certain financial institutions. Under K-IFRS, if the
| Company retains substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets, the
financial assets are not derecognized.

3) Tax effect

Under previous GAAP, the Company recognized deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities as
the difference between the book and tax basis of its investments in subsidiaries and others,
However, under K-IFRS, the Company recognizes deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities
based upon how the temporary differences will be realized.

(c) Effects on financial position, financial performance and cash flows due to the transition to K-IFRS

—_—

} Reconciliations of the financial position as of January 1, 2010 (the date of transition)

{in millians of Won)

Total Assels Total Liabliities Total Equity

Pravious GAAP W 39.992,765 041,474 30,951 291
Adjusiments :

Derecognition of financial assels 267,874 268444 (570)

Revaluation of machinery and equipment {*1) 1,871,636 - 1,871,636

Financial guncantee Habillfics 15210 15210 -

Defined benefit liabililics - 31,636 (31,636)

Other adjustmens (6,731) 2,950 (9.581)

Deferred tax cffect (286.075) (162281) (123,794)
Toal adjustment 1861914 155959 1,705,955
K-IFRS W 41,854,679 9,197433 32,657,246

{*1} Acquisition costs and accumulated depreciation of machinery and equipment were
decreased by W 4,017,435 million and W 5,889,071 million due to revaluation.
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Notes to Separate Financlal Statements, Continued
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2)

Reconciliation of financial position as of December 31, 2010 and the financial performance for

the year ended December 31, 2010:

| {in mitfions of Wour)

Total

Total Asscts Total Liabilities Total Equity Profit Comprehengive
For the year Income
Previous GAAP ¥ 48.190.245 13,108.055 35.082.i%0 4202791 4807073
. | Admstments :
' Dierecognilion of fnancial asscis 220365 221,086 221 49 349
Revaluation of machinery 1567064 - 1,567.064 (304573) (304.573)
and equinment
Financ inl guaraniec kabilitics 15835 15,595 290 240 240
Defmed benefit linbilities {4.022) 31980 (36.002) 126,149 {4,366)
Canceltation of (651545) - {653,345) (300,144) {504679)
equily methed apptiotion
Other adjustment (4460) m (9,439 5221 5221
| Deferred tnx effect (245.15%) (313.984) 68229 54328 160280
| Toad adjustment 865982 (45.324) 941306 (418430 (747.528)
K-IFRS W 49086227 13.062.731 36,003,496 3784381 4059.545

Interest received, interest paid and income taxes paid which were presented using indirect method
under the previous GAAP are presented using direct method as separate line items of cash flows from
operdting activities under K-IFRS. Also, effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held which

were

separpte line item from cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.

15

presented as cash flows from operating activities under the previous GAAP are presented as a
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Independent itors’ Review Report on Internal Accountin trol m
|

i English Translation of 2 Report Originally Issued in Korean

To the President of
POS(FO:

We have reviewed the accompanying Report on the Operations of Internal Accounting Control
Systam (“IACS”) of POSCO (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011. The Company's
management is responsible for designing and maintaining effective IACS and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of IACS. Qur responsibility is to review management's assessment and issue a report
based on our review. In the accompanying report of menagement's assessment of IACS, the
Company’s management stated: “Based on the assessment on the operations of the IACS, the
Company’s TACS has been effectively designed and is operating as of December 31, 2011, in all
material respects, in accordance with the IACS Framework issued by the Internal Accounting Control
System Operation Committee.”

We conducted our review in accordance with IACS Review Standards, issued by the Korean Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the review to
obtain assurance of a level less than that of an audit as to whether Report on the Operations of Internal
Accounting Control System is free of material misstatement. Our review consists principally of
obtaining an understanding of the Company’s IACS, inquiries of company personnel about the details
of the report, and tracing to related documents we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

A company's IACS is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
finangial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in conformity
witﬁ Korean International Financial Reporting Standards. Because of its inherent limitations,
however, IACS may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deterjorate.

Baseg on our review, nothing has come to our attention that Report on the Operations of Internal
Accounting Control System as of December 31, 2011 is not prepared in all material respects, in
accordance with IACS Framework issued by the Internal Accounting Control System Operation
Committee.
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This|report applies to the Company’s JACS in existence as of December 31, 2011. We did not
review the Company’s IACS subsequent to December 31, 2011. This report has been prepared for
Korean regulatory purposes, pursuant to the External Audit Law, and may not be appropriate for other
purposes or for other users.

Seoﬁl, Korea
March 8, 2012

Notice to Readers
This report is annexed in relation to the audit of the separate financial statements as of December 31,

201]| and the review of internal accounting control system pursuant to Article 2-3 of the Act on
Extemal Audit for Joint-stock Companies of the Republic of Korea.
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Report on the Operations of Internal Accounting Control System

To the Board of Directors and Audit Committee of
POSCO:
|

I, as the Internal Accounting Control Officer (“IACO™) of POSCO (the “Company™), have assessed
the status of the design and operations of the Company’s internal accounting control system (“IACS”)
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The ‘Company’s management including IACO is responsible for the design and operations of its IACS.

I, as the IACO, have assessed whether the IACS has been effectively designed and is operating to
prevent and detect any error or fraud which may cause any misstatement of the financial statements,
for tﬁe purpose of establishing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
state; nents for external purposes. I, as the IACO, applied the IACS Framework for the assessment of
design and operations of the IACS.

|
Based on the assessment of the operations of the 1IACS, the Company’s LACS has been effectively
designed and is operating as of December 31, 2011, in all material respects, in accordance with the
IACS Framework issued by the Internal Accounting Control System Operation Committee.

Chief Executive Officer or President

Internal Accounting Control Officer

Febryary 13, 2012

78

v~




Appendix A-7

Table of Income Statements
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Appendix A-8

Company’s Turnover Table
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